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AG
BETA

CEO
CIC
ECM
EMCA
ERP

HELB

HR

ICPSK
IEBC
IHRM
IPOA
KFS

LPO
LSK

NGO
NHIF
NITA
NPS
NSSF

NT

OAG
OCOB
ODPP
OPSA
PAYE
PFM
PWDs
SP

Attorney Generol
Bottom Up Economic Tronsformotion Agendo
Chief Executive Officer
Commission for the lmplementotion of the Constitution
Enterprise Content Monogement
Environmentol Monogement ond Co-ordinotion Act
Enterprise Resource Plonning
Higher Educotion Loon Boord
Humon Resource
lnstitute of Certified Public Secretories of Kenyo
lndependent Electorol ond Boundories Commission
lnstitute of Humon Resource Monogement
lndependent Policing Oversight Authority
Kenyo Forest Service
Locol Purchose Order
Low Society of Kenyo
Non-Governmentol Orgonizotion
Notionol Hospitol lnsuronce Fund
Notionol lndustriol Troining Authority
Notionol Police Service
Notionol Sociol Security Fund
NotionolTreosury
Office of the Auditor Generol
Office of the Controller of Budget
Office of the Director of Public Prosecution
Outstonding Police Service Aword
Poy As You Eorn
Public Finonce Monogement
Persons with Disobilities
Strotegic Plon
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,l. ACRONYMS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS



OUR MISSION!FA
To conou-,
invesllgotions, Inspe.-..
moniloring o, Notionol Pollce >c, .

enhonce professionollsm ond dlscipline
of the service

lndependent, lntegrity ond
occountobllity, lmportiolity,
professionolism ond occessibility

2.3 The Funclions of the Aulhority
The functions of the Authority ore to:
l. lnvestigote ony comploints reloting to disciplinory or criminol offences committed

by ony member of the Notionol Police Service, whether on its own motion or on
receipt of o comploint, ond moke recommendotions to the relevont outhorities,
including recommendotions for prosecution, compensotion, internol disciplinory
oction or ony other oppropriote relief, ond sholl moke public the response received
to these recommendotions;

2. Receive ond investigote comploints by members of the police Service;
3' Monitor ond investigote policing operotions offecting members of the public;
4. Monitor, review ond oudit investigotions ond octions token by the lnternol Affoirs

Unit of the Police Service in response to comploints ogoinst the police ond keep o
record of oll such comploints regordless of where they hove been first reported ond
whot oction hos been token;

5. Conduct inspections of Police premises, including detention focilities under the
control of the Service;

6. Co-operote with other institutions on issues of Police oversight, including other Stote
orgons in relotion to services offered by them;

Z. Review the potterns of Police misconduct ond the functioning of the internol
disciplinory process;

8. Present ony informotion it deems oppropriote to on inquest conducted by o court
of low;

9. Toke oll reosonoble steps to focilitote occess to the Authority's services to the
public;

10. Subject to the Constitution ond the lows reloted to freedom of informotion, publish
findings of its investigotions, monitoring, reviews ond oudits os it seems fit, including
by meons of the electronic or printed medio;

I l.Moke recommendotions to the porice service or ony Stote orgon;
12. Report on oll its functions under its Act or ony written low; ond
l3' Perform such other functions os moy be necessory for promoting the objeclives forwhich the Authority is estoblished.
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This is th
responsil tit, ,rPS to ensure the Professionolism ond integrity of its members, it wos

ocknowleJged thot the ideo of Police investigoting their own hordly restored public

confidence ond trust. Hence, in

of the Constitution, it become
ploce to monitor how the Serv

breoching the low.

2.2 Objectives of the AuthoritY

order to bring into effect these fundomentol provisions

criticol thot o civilion oversight mechonism be put in
ice dischorges their duty of low enforcement without

The objectives of Authority pursuont to sec. 5 of the lPoA Act ore to;

i. Hold the Police occountoble to the public in the performonce of their functions;

ii. Give effect to the provision of Article 244 of the Constitution thot the Police sholl

strive for professionolism ond discipline ond sholl promote ond proctice

tronsporency ond occountobility; ond
iii. Ensuie independent oversight of the hondling of comploints by the Notionol

Police Service.
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The Director who is olso Secretory to the Boord is responsible for the doy to doy
monogement of the Authority with support of Heods of Directorotes ond
Deportments. The detoils of the Boord ond monogement who held office during the
period is os shown:

I

4

BOARD

Mrs. Anne Mokori is the Choirperson of the
lndependent Policing Oversight Authority Boord.
She holds o Low Degree (LLB Hons) from the
University of Noirobi, o Postgroduote Diplomo
from the Kenyo School of Low, ond o
Postgroduote Diplomo in Humon Resource
Monogement ond o Mosters in Leodership. She
is o Certified Public Secretory (CPS-K), o Certified
Professionol Troiner ond o certified professionol
mediotor.

Anne hos vost experience sponning over 20
yeors with exposure of both Boord ond
monogement levels in the government,

medio industry, finonce sector (Bonking) ond
Legol proctice where she speciolized in civil
litigotion, conveyoncing ond corporoie low. Mrs.

Mokori hos olso undertoken Humqn Resource

Consultoncy ot both locol ond internotionol
level.

She is on experienced leoder in the oreos of
strotegy development ond implementotion,
compony secretoriol, orgonizotionol review,
performonce monogement, culture ond
chonge monogement os well os business
development hoving previously given
oversight ond leodership ot different levels,
including serving os o Generol Monoger in
chorge of Business Development, Legol ond
Humon Resources.

Mrs. Mokori is o member of Low Society of
Kenyo (LSK), lnstitute of Certified Public
Secretories of Kenyo (ICPSK) ond the lnstitute
of Humon Resource Monogement (IHRM).

She is olso octively involved in community
service in the oreos of educotion, literocy
ond longuoge development for smoll ond
morginolized community groups os well
supporting churches.
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CHAIRPERSON
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MRS. ANNE MAKORI, EBS

CHAIRPERSON



VICE CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Lodompui is the Vice Choirperson ot IPOA.
He holds o PhD in Politicol Science ond Public
Administrotion with o bios in Conflict
Tronsformotion, o Moster's Degree in
lnternotionol Relotions ond Diplomocy ond o
bochelor's degree in Public Administrotion ond
Politicol Science biosed on Reforms ond
Tronsformotionol Development oll from the
University of Noirobi.

in tronsformotive development, peocebuildinn,
conflict monogement ond security motters.
hos presented locolly ond iniernotionolly ond
contributed in ocodemic journols including;
Conflict Anolysis ond Mopping in Kenyo.
lmpoverishment of the Postorolists Groups in

Kenyo, fothers ore porents too, the Collopse of the
EAC in 1977, lhe Notionol interest of Tonzonio,
Somburu Origins, Migrotions ond Settlement
ond lnternol ond externolconflict triggers

He is the immediote former Director for the
Enoblers ond Mocros Directorote of the Kenyo
Vision 2O3O Delivery Secretoriot. which is

chorged with coordinotion of the
implementotion of infrostructure projects.

Previously, he worked with the Militory os on Air
Force Officer, the Child Fund os o Regionol
Coordinotor, Teochers Service Commission os o
Chief Reseorch Officer, ond o Director ot Kenyo
Vision 2030 Secretoriot. He olso tought ot
vorious universities including the University of
Noirobi, Technicol University of Kenyo. Africo
Nozorene University, ond the United Stotes
lnternotionol U niversity.

IPOA Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the ysar ended 30th June, 2024

He olso holds two Diplomos. He hos
monogement experience in vorious
orgonizotions ond in notionol consultoncies
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COMM!SIONER

Fotumo is o Gender ond Governonce Speciolist
who holds o Mosters ond Bochelor's Degree in

Gender ond Development Studies from the
University of Noirobi. She hos over 20 yeors'
experience in policy reloted development
issues, policy formulotions, deoling with
stokeholders, donor orgonizotions ond locol
communities.

She is o troined mediotor with experience in
fostering peoceful coexistence, conf lict
monogement ond notionol cohesion.

She founded the Women Centre for Peoce
ond Development, on NGO thot empowers
morginolized women in peoce, security ond
educotion through economic ond politicol
porticipotion in the Northern Counties of
Kenyo. She hos knowledge of the relevont
notionol ond internotionol gender ondhumon
rights instruments, convention ond legislotion.

Fotumo wos o Commissioner with the Notionol
Cohesion ond lntegrotion Commissionond olso
served os o port time lecturer of the Egerton
University's lnstitute of Women Gender ond
Development Studies.

She is o member of the Notionol Women
Steering Committee which odvocotes for- the
implementotion of the two-third constitutionol
gender rule. She olso served of the Borcloys Bonk
(K) Ltd. in severol copocities. She is the choirperson
of the Communicotion ond Outreoch Committee
of the IPOA Boord.

Ms. Muthouro is on odvocote of the High Court
of Kenyo, on expert in Legislotive Drofting, Low
Reform, Policy Formulotion ond evidence
bosed Regulotory lmpoct Assessment (RlA).

She holds o Moster's Degree in Low (LLM -
Distinction) from the University of London,Low
Degree (LLB Hons.) from Moi University, o
postgroduote Diplomo in Legol Studiesfrom
the Kenyo School of Low, o Postgroduote
Diplomo in Legislotive Drofting from the Royol
lnstitute of Public Administrotion (RIPA

lnternotionol) London,

DOREEN MUTHAURA, MBS

r.D

\3
FATUMA MOHAMMED, MBS

COMMISIONER

COMMISIONER

\

COMMISIONER
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o Postgroduote in Evidence Bosed Policy
Formulqtion ond Tronsloting Policy into Legislotion
from RIPA lnternotionol London, Certificote in

Effective Governonce, Leodershipond lntegrity
from the Griffith University. Queenslond Austrolio.

She hos served in vorious copocities in thePublic
ond Privote sectors. She . wos the Vice
Choirperson ond Commissioner of theKenyo
Low Reform Commission, from 2013 to20l8 where
she choired the Committee on Low Reform,
Policy Formulotion ond Legislotive Services,
speorheoded ond drofted the First Legislotive
Process Guide in Kenyo, porticipoted in the
drofting of over 60 mod el lows for County
Governments customizotion ond odopiion,
developed severol Government policies ond
other legol instruments. She is o low lecturer ond
hos troined County Attorneys ond other senior
Government officers.

She worked tor the Commission for the
lmplementotlon of ihe Constitution (ClC)from
201 I where she porticipoted extensively in
drofting lows required by the FourthSchedule
to the Constitution. Ms Muthouro wos
instrumentol in drofting the Notionol Police
Service Act, Notionoi Police ServiceCommission
Act, lndependent PolicingOversight Authority
Act, Kenyo DefenceForces Act, Power of Mercy
Act, Notionol

Security Council Act, Notionol lntelligence
Service Act, omongst others.

She is olso o Porliomentory Counsel hovir'
worked for the Of fice of the Attorne,
Generol, Stote Low Office. ond Legislotive
Drofting Deportment. At the AG chombers, she

drofted severol legol instruments, Bills ond
subsidiory legislotion ond offered high profile legol
ond legislotive odvice to the Government of
Kenyo.

COMM!SIONER

Dr. Ogony, o distinguished medicol
proctitioner, is o former Chief Medicol Speciolist
ot the Kenyotto Notionol Hospitolond Assistont
Director of the Surgicol Division. He hos served
in Public Service for 35 yeors, including 27 ot
Kenyotto NotionolHospitol where he rose to the
Chief S pe c io lis tpositio n.

He holds o Moster's Degree in Medicine fromthe
University of Noirobi, Postgroduote
Diplomo from University of London, ond
Fellowship of the Eostern Africo College of
Ophtholmologists.

She porticipoted in vorious toskforces ond
committees including the Toskforce on the
Review of the Mondotory Noture of theDeoth
Penolty in Kenyo ond hos olso under token low
reform ond legislotive droftingconsultoncies ot
both locol ond internotionol ol levels. She is o
Member of the Low Society of Kenyo, the Eost
Africon Low Society, the Commonweolth
Associotion of Lowyers. the Commonweolth
Associotion of Legislotive Counsel (CALC), the
Chevening Scholors Alumni, the Federotion of
WomenLowyers Kenyo Chopter FIDA-K ond on
Austrolion Aword Fellow.

She is olso octively involved in communily
service in the oreos of humon rights, educotion
os well supporting women, churchesond other
chority orgonizotions. She choirs the Humon
Resource Committee of the Boord.

,
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DR. WATTER OWEN OGENY, MBS

COMMISIONER
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He is o registered ond licenced member of the
Medicol Proctitioners ond Dentists Boord ond olso
o member of the Kenyo Medicol Associotion
--l Ophtholmologic-

ociety of Kenyo.

He is vostly experienced in medicol proctice
hoving initiolly worked os o generol proctitioner,
then loter os o speciolist, medicoleducotion
ond monogement. He is conversont with
motters pertoining to work injuryond benefits.
Throughout. Dr. Ogony hosupheld professionol

ond personol ethics,integrity ond honesty. He
choired ond olsosot os member of severol
Toskforces ondCommittees of the Kenyotto
No tionol Hospitol while in service.

He hos ottended severol courses including,Senior
Monogement Course ot the Kenyo School of
Government, Corporote Governonce, BIDE

Performonce Controcting, lndustriol Relotions ot FKE

ond Trustee Development Progromme Kenyo.

He is o post Choir ond member of the Boord of
Governors of Sidindi Secondory School ond o
post member of ihe Noirobi Heolth
Monogement Boord.

ln20l2, His Excellency the Presideni oworded
Dr. Ogony the Order of the Grond Worrior (OGW)

for his exemplory service to the notion.

COMMISIONERI

Dr. Tororey holds o Moster's degree inWomen's
Low from the University of Zimbobwe ond
pursuing onother Mosters in Diplomocy ond
Foreign Policy ot Moi University.

She olso holds o Bochelor of Lows (LLB) fromthe
University of Noirobi. Diplomo in lnternotionol
Environmentol Low-moking ond Diplomocy from
University of Joensuu, Diplomo in Women's Low
ond o Diplomo in Low from the Kenyo School of
Low ond Certificoies in Monogement ond
Strotegic Reform of Electorol Processes, Legol
Audits, Legislotio n Drofting, Mediotion, Arbitrotion.

Conflict Monogement ond Dispute Resolution,
Strotegic Leodership DevelopmentProgromme
ond Corporote Governonce.

Dr Proxedes hos twenty-seven yeors of Public
Service experience hoving worked os o
Mogistrote in Norok, Nonyuki, Korotino ond
Mochokos Low Couris. She porticipoted inthe
development of the Judiciory BenchBook for
Mogiskotes in criminol proceedings ond olso
developed o troining monuol on opplicotion of
Hudumo Rights lnstruments in Courts by Judiciol
Officers.

She served os on in-house Generol Counselwith
Stote Corporotion ond Constitutionol
Commission in Public Sector Monogement,
Constitutionol Development, Administrotion of
Justice, Humon Rights, Devolution, Policy ond
Legislotive Drofting, Elections monogemenf ,

Monogement of Forests ond Corporote
Governonce including development of Notionol
Anti-corruption fromeworks. She wos Director,
Legol ond Public Affoirs ot lndependent Electorol
ond Boundories Commission (lE B C). Among other
ochievements, she supported the tronsition of
Kenyo's electorol monogement body from ECK,

llEC to the IEBC ond developedthe Referendum
Regulotions, 2010 together with the referendum
medio Guidelines of the some yeor

. J.
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DR. PRAXEDES TOROREY, MBS

COMMISIONER
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Dr. Tororey olso served os the Corporotion
Secretory ond Heod of Legol Services ot the
Kenyo Forest Service. At KFS, she helped develop
the Boord Code of Conduct, Codeof Conduct
for disciplined officers, four (41 Subsidiory
Legislotions under the Forest Act ond o litigotion
strotegy for the Service. She olso troined Forest
Officers in prosecutions ond oversow their
Gozettement.

She is o member of the lnternotionol
Commission of Jurists (Kenyo Chopter), Low
Society of Kenyo, FIDA-Kenyo ond Kenyo
Women Judges Associotion, Associote
Member of the Chortered lnstitute of
Arbitrotors, Member, Consoloto Friends
Associotion (Floro Chopel Bronch),

Vice Choirperson, One More Doy for Children
ond o life member of the Red Cross Societyof
Kenyo.

She hos undertoken vorious leoders...,_
responsibilities including; choiring the
Review of Electorol Lows Toskforce ond
Referendum Technicol Committee (IEBC),

member to the Toskforce on Review of Legol,
Policy ond lnstitutionol Fromework for fighting
Corruption in Kenyo, 201 5,Secretory, Legol
Reforms, Electorol Code of Conduct ond
Complionce Committee (IEBC), Toskforce
Member, Notionol Steering Committee on
Devolved Government; C hoirperson Court
Users Committee, Registror of Titles, Minishy of
Londs, Post Secretory, Jurist of the Yeor -
lnternotionol Commission of Jurists (lCJ). Dr Tororey is

the Choirperson of the Technicol Services
Committee.

COMMISIONERI

Hon. Jo n Woigon.io is on Advocote of the High
Court with o Low Degree from the University of
Noirobi ond o Postgroduote Diplomo in Low
from the Kenyo School of Low. He wos odmitted
to the Bor in 1996.

He represented the Ol Joro Orok Constituency
in Porlioment between 20.l3 to 2017, where he
wos credited for moking more thon 360
presentotions. ln Porlioment, he wos o member of
the Deportmentol

Committee on Justice ond Legol Affoirs where his

nome is synonymous with the Penol Code
(Amendment) Bill ond the Criminol Procedure
Code (Amendment) Bill which sought to obolish
the deoth penolty.

Chompioning for proper procedures to be
followed during drofting ond enoctment of
lows by vorious Stote ogencies, Hon.
Woigonjo supported the Porliomentory
Committee on Delegoted Legislotion's
rejection of PSV regulotions developed by the
Notionol Tronsport ond Sofety Authority which
hod not been tobled in Porlioment orguing thot
it wos only Porlioment thot could moke lows.
Hon. Woigonjo is olso o Co-Convenor of the Kenyo
Porliomentory Humon Rights coucus ond o
member of the Low Society of Kenyo. He is senior
portner ot J.M. Woigonjo ond Compony
Advocotes, on ovid sports fon ond o block belt in
ShotoKon Mortiol ort. Hon. Woigonjo is the
Choirperson of the Finonce ond Administrotion
Boord Committee.

I
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DTRECTOR/CEO & SECRETARYI
o

Mr. Elemo Holoke holds o Moster of Arts ond o
Bochelor of Arts in Development Studies, o
Diplomo in Wildlife Monogement, on Advonced
Diplomo in Sociol Work ond o postgroduote
Diplomo Certificote in Criminol Justice from
Virginio University, USA.

His Public Service coreer spons over 28 yeors

including ot Kenyo Wildlife Service (KWS), where
he wos o Senior Assistont Director ond olso sot on
the Boord of the Kenyo School of Leodership ond
Adventure ot Ml. Kenyo. AIKWS, he wos port of
the leodership thot

fronted the ,l990's onti-pooching skotegy thot
stobilized wildlife conservotion, enhonced
security, ond monogement.

Eorlier, os IPOA's Director of lnvestigotions, Mr.

Holoke initioted series of odministrotive ond
operotionol reforms, exponded the investigotion
copocity, enhonced ond strengthened
performonce ond conkibuted towords
decenkolized regionol operotions.

At Anti-Counterfeit Authority (ACA), he
speorheoded legol ond regulotory reforms
including the enoctment of the Anti- Counterfeit
Act 2018, developed ond deployed the AIMS

project (Anti-Counterfeit lnformotion
Monogement system) ond lounched the first ever
Notionol boseline survey on the mognitude of
counterfeiting ond illicit trode in Kenyo.

His integrity ond high-performonce trock record in
Public Service sow him recognized ond
decoroted with the Silver Stor (SS) of Kenyo by his

Excellency, the President of the Republic of Kenyo
in 2006, with o citotion for couroge ond
commitment to duty.

e
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ETEMA HAIAKE, SS

DIRECTOR/CEO & SECRETARY
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DIRECIOR/CEO & SECREIARY

Mr. Elemo Holoke holds o Moster of Arts ond o
Bochelor of Arts in Development Studies, o
Diplomo in Wildlife Monogement, on Advonced
Diplomo in Sociol Work ond o postgroduote
Diplomo Certificote in Criminol Justice from
Virginio University, USA.

His Public Service coreer spons over 28 yeors
including ot Kenyo Wildlife Service (KWS),

where he wos o Senior Assistont Director ond
olso sot on the Boord of the Kenyo School of
Leodership ond Adventure ot Mt. Kenyo. At
KWS, he wos port of the leodership ihot

fronted the 1990's onti-pooching strotegy thot
stobilized wildlife conservotion, enhonced
security, ond monogement.
Eorlier, os IPOA's Director of lnvestigotions, Mr.
Holoke initioted series of odministrotive ond
operotionol reforms, exponded the investigotion
copocity, enhonced ond skengthened
performonce ond contributed towords
decentrolized regionol operotions.

At Anti-Counterfeit Authority (ACA), he
speorheoded legol ond regulotory reforms
including the enoctment of the Anti- Counterfeit
Act 2018, developed ond deployed the AIMS
project (Anti-Counterfeit lnformotion
Monogement system) ond lounched the first ever
Notionol boseline survey on the mognitude of
counterfeiting ond illicit trode in Kenyo.

His integrity ond high-performonce trock record in

Public Service sow him recognized ond
decoroted with the Silver Stor (SS) of Kenyo by his

Excellency, the President of the Republic of Kenyo
in 2006, with o citotion for couroge ond
commitment to duty.

I
EIEMA HALAKE, SS
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Munene holds o Moster of Science in

Governonce, Peoce & Security Studies,

Bochelors in Criminology ond Security Studies

ond o Diplomo in Forensic Criminology. He is

olso o Certified Froud Exominer. He hos olso
undertoken severol investigotions ond security
reloted courses.

While serving os o DCI Officer, he wos oworded
the distinguished Outstonding Police Service
Aword (OPSA) in2O16.

Munene wos credited for the conceptuolizotion
ond founding of the Professionol Criminologists
Associotion of Kenyo (PCAK) ond ihe Kenyo
Professionol Society of Criminology (KEPSOC)

where he olso served os the founding Choirmon
ond Potron respectively. He is olso Potron of the
PCAK Youih Criminologists Associotion. PYE in
Eost Africo.

He is olso o troined poromilitory
hoving served with GSU, served

Police
oso

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Emmonuel Logot holds o Bochelor of Science
ond o Moster's Degree. He hos extensive
experience in forensics, bollistics, investigotions,
disoster victim identificotion ond crime scene
monogement.

He hos been troined in Fronce, USA, Germony ond
locolly in the oreo of criminology ond forensic
investigotions. Before ossuming the role of Director
lnvestigotions, Logot served os the Heod of Ropid
Response ond Forensics.

detective ot the DCI HQs lnvestigotions Bureou
between 2012 ond 2017 os he rose through the
ronks. He wos olso o trovelling troiner of Kenyo
Police College ond loter Heod of County Criminol
lntelligence before joining IPOA in 201B where he
ropidly rose through the ronks to become the
current Direcior of lnspections, Reseorch ond
Monitoring. He gornered wide experience os o
Criminol Detective with o speciolty in crime
intelligence.

I

MUNENE M. MUGAMBI

DEPUW OIRECTOR, INSPECTIONS
TTIONITORING & PREVENTIVE SERVICES

7

I

EMANUEL LAGAT

DEPUTY DIRECTOR, INVESTIGATIONS
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Mr. Adon is o respected finonciol expert w'
over l5 yeors of professionol experience in
finonce, Accounting, ouditing ond
qssuronce in both Public ond Privote Sectors.
Prior to joining IPOA Adon served os
monoger Finonce ond Accounts of Kenyo
Leother Development Council ond in

monogeriol & supervision positions of Gorisso
University.

Mr. Adon is o PhD condidote ot KCA
pursuing PhD in Finonce. He holds Moster's
degree in Business Administrotion (Finonce
& Accounting option) ond Bochelor
degree in Business Monogement (Finonce
Option) -First closs Honours.

He is olso holder of CPA-K Certificqte ond
o member of the lnstitute of Certified
Public Accountonts of Kenyo in good
stonding. He holds o certificote in strotegic
leodership development progromme
(SLDP), senior monogement course (SMC)

omong other certificotes.

I
MOHAMED ADAN

I t-t

OEPUTY DIRECTOR, FINANCE & PLANNING
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MANAGEMENT IEAM

Lt. Col. (Rtd.) Cotherine Gichuki holds o
Moster of Lows (LLM) from the University of
Nottinghom, United Kingdom, Mosters of
Arts in lnternotionol Conflict Monogement
from lhe University of Noirobi, Bochelor of
Lows Degree (LLB Hons.) from Moi University, o
postgroduote Diplomo in Legol Studies
from the Kenyo School of Low, o Certificote
in Public lnternotionol Low from the Hogue
Acodemy of lnternoiionol Low. o
Certificote in lntroduction to Arbitrotion
from the Kenyo lnstitute of
Chortered Arbitrotors, o Certificote in

Foundotion Course in lnternolionol
Computer Driving Licence (ICDL), o
Certificote in lniroduction to Mediotion
ond the 40 hours Mediotion Course from
the Notionol Centre for lnternotionol
Arbitrotion omongst other professionol,
United Notions courses ond ocodemic
troining.

Cotherine is on odvocote of the High Court of
Kenyo of over l8 yeors ond is o retired militory
officer with vost expertise in internotionol low,
peoce ond security. Her coreer spons Notionol
ond lnternotionol orgonizotions including the
Kenyo Defence Force (KDF) where she worked os
o Legol Officer ond militory prosecutor for 13 yeors

ond retired of the ronk of Lieutenont Colonel.

Under secondment from the KDF, she olso served
for one yeor ol the United Notions os o mililory
stoff officer (UN Peoce Keeper) under the Africon
Union - United Notions Mission in Dorfur (UNAMID)

in the Republic of the Sudon. Cotherine olso
served ot the United Notions os o Legol Officer in
the Africon Union - United Notions Mission in Dorfur
(UNAMID). She wos loter oppointed os the Heod
of Legol for the UNAMID Liquidotion Teom where
she served until 3,l,1 Morch 2022.

Cotherine is o Member of the Low Society of
Kenyo (LSK), Member of Chevening Scholorship
Alumni - Kenyo Chopter, Member of the
Federotion of Women Lowyers Kenyo Chopter
FIDA-K, Eost Africon Low Society ond Associotion
of Corporote ond industriol Security Monogement
Professionols (ACISMP). She is octively involved in

community service in the oreos of coreer youth
mentorship ond the empowerment of women ond
children

/

tT. cor. (RID.) CATHERINE GICHUK!

DEPUTY DIRECTOR LEGAL SERVICES
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More is o full member of the lnstitute of Hur
Resource Monogement (IHRM) ond hos ovcr
'l 5 yeors of experience in Humon Resource
monogement. Before joining the Authority, she
served os o Monoger of Kenyo Post Office
Sovings Bonk.

I

More Jillo, Deputy Director Humon Resource
Monogement ond Administrotion is o Certified
Humon Resource Professionol (CHRP-K) with
Mosters of Business Administrotion, speciolized
in Humon Resource Monogement from Mount
Kenyo University, Bochelor of Business
Monogement, speciolized in Humon Resource
Monogement from Mount Kenyo University
ond Diplomo in Humon Resource
Monogement(KNEC) f rom Noirobi Technicol
Troining lnstitute.

IUIANAGEMENT TEAM

Kinoti holds o Moster's degree in Low (LL.M) in
lnternotionol Humonitorion Low ond Humon
Rights from the Genevo Acodemy (CUM LAUDE).

He hos olso o Post-Groduote Diplomo in Low from
the Kenyo School of Low ond o Bochelor of lows
(LL. B) University of Noirobi (2nd closs upper).

Before joining IPOA he wos the Ag. Heod legol
services ot the Uncloimed Finonciol Assets
Authority where he loined os o Senior Legol
Officer. Mr. Kinoti olso worked os onAssociote ot
Musyoko Wombuo & Kotiku Advocotes ond
Orowe & Co. Advocotes.He storted off os o
Legol Officer ot ICRC Regionol Delegotion in
Noirobi. He is on Advocote of the High Court of
Kenyo.

FESTUS KINOTI

MANAGEMENT TEAM

4

/
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/

MARE JILLO

DEPUW DIRECTO& HUMAN RESOURCE & ADMIN

J
I

7

SEI{IOR ASSISTAI{T DIRECTOR OF LEGAL SERVICES
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Josphot is o full member of the lnstiiute ond hos
over 'l 2 yeors' experience os o troiner. Before
joining the Authority, he served os o Humon
Resource Monogement troiner ond course
coordinotor ot Thiko Technicol Troining lnstitute.
He olso served os on online copocity building
coordinotor ond troiner of Technicol ond
Vocotionol Troiners on online focilitotion.

Josphot Korind is o Certified Humon
Resource Professionol (CHRP-K) with on
Executive Moster of Science in

Orgonizotionol development from United
Stotes lnternotionol University, Bochelor of
Science from Moi University ond KNEC

higher Diplomo in Humon Resource

Monogement. He hos olso undertoken o
Senior Monogement Course oi KSG.

JOSPHANT KARINDI

Dr. Ruth Joyce Koguto holds o PhD (Low &
Criminology-UPPA. Fronce), BA & MA (Moi
University), LLB (Mt Kenyo University-Kenyo),
ond PGD (Kenyo School of Low).

Dr. Koguto is on odvocote of the High Court with
o vost knowledge of the low. She hos over l5
yeors of experience in serving os o senior
university lecturer teoching Criminology ond
Low. She hos olso served os externol exominer
of Criminology ond Security Monogement for
Alupe university, Chuko University, Murong'o
University ond Korotino Unlversity.

Before joining university os o lecturer, Dr Ruth
tought ot Eldoret Polytechnic between 2006
ond 2009. Aport from teoching Dr. Ruth hos olso
conducted reseorch ond published ocodemic
popers ond book chopters in the field of Low
ond Security Monogement ond supervised both
mosters ond PhD students in thesis writing.

ln December 2O1 6. she wos oworded os lecturer
of the yeor in recognition for octively seeking
opportunities thot promote knowledge tronsfer
ond informotion shoring ot Dedon Kimothi
University of Technology.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

T

SENIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, HR & ADMIN

MAT{AGEiIIE}IT TEAM

Dr. RUTH KAGUTA, PhD

SENIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR COMPT"AINTS
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Kennedy Ndire hos vost experience in
enterprise systems ond network design ond
implementotion, Doto Centre setup ond
monogement, ERP systems

(SAP, Orocle Siebel CRM ond Tronslogic) c
CRM systems (Microsoft Dynomics CRM) design
ond roll out, user troining, project monogement,
policing ond strotegic monogement.

He holds Moster's Degree in Computer
Science Distributed Computing Technologies
from The university of Noirobi ond Bochelor
Degree in Business lnformotion Technology from
Stroth more U niversity.

He hos wide spreod professionol troinings in the
exponse of lCT. He hos previously worked in
vorious positions with Kenyo Roilwoys, Rift Volley
Roilwoys, lndependent Policing Oversight
Authority ond ot Hudumo Kenyo Secretoriot
omong others.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

SENIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR ICT
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Dennis, holds Moster's ond Bochelor's
Degrees in Communicotion ond o Notionol
Diplomo in Visuol Arts ond Communicotion.
Dennis hos ottended the Strotegic
Leodership ond Development Progromme
(SLDP)ond Senior Monogement Course (SMC) ot
the Kenyo School of Government.

He hos spoken ot forums in Sydney Austrolio.
Kompolo, ond the United Arobs Emirotes. Dennis
is o full member of the Public Relotions Society of
Kenyo (PRSK) ond the Kenyo lnstitute of
Monogement (KlM).

Bethuel Sugut holds o Moster of Business

Administrotion Degree in Strotegic
Monogement from Moi University, Bochelor of
Arts Degree in Sociol Sciences from Egerton
University ond o Postgroduote Diplomo in Humon
Resource Monogement from University of Noirobi.
He is on Auditor in Quolity Monogement System,
|SO9O0l:2008.

To IPOA, Bethuel brings on boord o weolth of
experience sponning over 2'l yeors' e x p e r ie
n c e i n M o n o g e m e n t o n d Administrotion.
Bethuel previously served in the Provinciol
Administrotion ot the Office of the President ond
lnternotionol Fund for Agriculture Development
(rFAD).

Prior to thot Sugut served os o Personol Assistont

to the Minister of Agriculture ond Director of
Adminiskotion, Plonning ond Operotions of Mt.
Kenyo University for 9 yeors ond 5 yeors
respectively. Before joining IPOA, Sugut wos te
Administrotion Monoger ot the Kenyo lnstituteof
Moss Communicotion (KIMC).

He hos undertoken vorious Administrotive
Progrommes with ihe Kenyo School of
Government (KSG). He is currently pursuing his PhD

in Business Administrotion with o bios in Strotegic
Monogement. He is on Associote member of
the Kenyo lnstitute of Monogement (KlM) ond
lnstitute of Humon Resource Monogement.

SENIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR COMMUNICATIONS

MANAGEMENT TEAM

BETHUEL SUGUT

SENIIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, REGIONS
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MANAGEMENI IEAMI

Mojor Benson Miloo (Rtd) holds o Moster of
Business Administrotion (MBA) from the Universiiy of
Noirobi, o Bochelor of Science (BSC) in Militory
Science from Egerton University, o Bochelor of
Commerce (BCOM) from the University of Noirobi.
Level 5 Orgonizotion Diplomo in Security
Monogement from the lnternotionol Security
Monogement lnstitute (lSMl), United Kingdom, o
finol yeor Bochelor of Lows Degree (LLB) ot the
University of Noirobi, omongst other professionol,
militory, United Notions ond ocodemic troining.

Benson hos vost knowledge goined from
militory, corporote, internolionol ond privote
proctice. He hos over l9 yeors' Security,
Surveillonce, Enforcement,

lnvestigotions, lntelligence, Governonce, Low
ond Administrotion experience hovingstorted
os o Codet Officer ot the Kenyo Militory Acodemy
(KMA), Lonet, Nokuru;ond rising to the ronk of
Mojor in the Kenyo Defence Forces (KDF). While ot
the KDF, he served in vorious positions including;
Plotoon Commonder. lntelligence ond
lnvestigotions Officer, Aide de Comp (ADC) to the
Army Commonder ond the Vice Chief of Defence
Forces, Compony Commonder, omong others.

Benson hos olso served on internotionol
ossignments including secondment to the United
Notions (UN) Mission in the Democrotic Republic of
Congo (MONUSCO) in 2014/201 5, where he
contributed immensely to Security Sector
Reforms (SSR ); Disormoment, Demobilizotion,
Repotriotion, Reintegroiion ond Resettlement
(DDRRR) progroms; humonitorion response;
humon rights issues omong others.

Mojor Miloo (Rtd) is o member of the
lnternotionol Security Monogement lnstitute
(lSMl), United Kingdom ond o member of the
Associotion of Corporote ond lndustriol Security
Monogement Professionols (ACISMP). He wos
oworded the UN Peoce Keeping Medol (2015),
the Constitutionol Medol (2013) ond Lindo Nchi
Medol (20,l3).He is octively involved in security
troining ond consultotion os well os
empowerment of the vulneroble members of
soc iety.

T

t

MAJOR BENSOI{ TIILAO

SENIOR AESTSTANT D|RECTOR,

SEGURITY EERVICES
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

h

Fredrick holds on MSc in Procurement ond
Logistics from Jomo Kenyotto University of
Agriculture ond Technology (JKUAT) ond o
Bochelor of Commerce (Morketing Option)from
the University of Noirobi.

He olso holds ogroduote Diplomo in Purchosing
ond Supply from the Chortered lnstitute of
Purchosing & Supply (CF9 UK), onAdvonced
Diplomo in Purchosing & Supply from the UK.

Diplomo in Business Monogement from The
University of Noirobi, omong other professionol
quolificotions. He is o member of The Kenyo
lnstitute of Supplies Monogement (M.K.l.S.M) ond
The Chortered lnstitute of Purchosing ond
Supply (M.C.l.P.S-UK).

MANAGEMENT TEAMI
KCA University koining both Certified Public
Accountonts ond Bochelor of Commerce
quolificotions. He hos tought in other CPA troining
institutions like Vision lnstitute of Professionols, Stor
College of Monogement Studies, Summit
Business School. He is cunently pursuing o
Doctorol degree (PhD) in Business Administrotion-
Finonce from Jomo Kenyotto University of
Agriculture ond Technology (JKUAI).

He holds o Moster of Business Adminiskotion(MBA)
Finonce option from Kenyotto University (KU)

ond o Bochelor of Commerce Degree
(Accounting option) from KCAUniversity. He is olso
o Certified Public Accountont of Kenyo
(ICPAK), Certified Public Secretory (CS), ond
Certified Credit Professionol (CCP). He is o member
of the lnstituteof lnternolAuditors (lAA).

Enosh Nyobibo hos cumulotive experience in
Auditing over o period of fifteen yeqrs which
wos obtoined in the teoching froternity in the
privote sector. Prior to loining IPOA, he wos
employed os o lecturerwith

M

FREDRICK CHABARI

SENIIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PROCUREMENT

ENOSH NYABIBA

tF*--'*)t

SENIOR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, RISK &
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Mr. Jibril hos exfensive experience
investigotions ond Crime scene monogement
hoving been on investigotor for more thon 24
yeo rs.

Mr. Jibril is o troined Police officer ond served ot
the Directorote of Criminol lnvestigotions where
he rose through the ronks. He joined in IPOA in
2O17 ond rose through the ronks to become the
current Heod of investigotions. Before ossuming
the role of Heod of lnvestigotions, Mr. Jibril
served os the octing Heod of Ropid Response,
Forensics ond Preliminory investigotions.

Mr. Jibril holds Postgroduote Diplomo in
Low, Bochelors of Low, Bochelors of Arts
ond Diplomo in Criminology ond sociol
studies. He is currently pursuing Mosters in
Security Monogemeni ond Policing
Studies.

Job Mugiiro is o Reseorch, Policy ond
Complionce Expert wilh o cumulotive
experience of 12 yeors in reseorch
methodology, doto onolysis, reporting, policy
onolysis, skotegic plonning ond complionce.
Job hod previously worked with Futures First Ltd.
in Kenyo ond lndio os on lnternotionol Morkets
Anolyst troding derivotives on the Chicogo
Mercontile Exchonge (CME) ond Tronsporency
Internotionol -Kenyo os the Deputy Reseorch
Officer.

At IPOA he served os the Senior Reseorch Officer,
Assistont Director-lnspections ond currently os the
Senior Assistont Direcior - lnspeciions. ln 2023, he
served os o Reseorch Anolyst in the Notionol
Toskforce on lmprovement of Terms ond Conditions
of Service ond other Reforms for Members of the
Notionol Police Service ond Kenyo Prisons Service
(Morogo Toskf orce).

Job holds on MBA in Corporote Monogement from
KCA University qnd o Bochelor's Degree in
Economics & Stotistics from the University of Noirobi.
Besides, he holds o Strotegic Leodership
Development Progrom (SLDP) ond o Senior
Monogement Course (SMC) certificote from the
Kenyo School of Government. Job hos undertoken o
Troining in lnternotionol Morkets Anolysis in lndio ond
Certified Public Accountont (CPA) Port I from
KASNEB. He olso holds certificotes in Doto Demond
ond Use ond Fundomentols of Monitoring &
Evoluotion from Meosure Evoluotion in oddition to o
Distinction in the Trustee Development Progrom from
Kenyo College of lnsuronce. He is o full member of
the Kenyo lnstitute of Monogement (KlM) ond the
lnstitute of Economic Affoirs (lEA).

,\\-
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ABDIRAHMAN JIBRIL

SENIOR ASSISTAI{T DIRECTOR INVESTIGATION

MANAGEMENT TEAM
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2.4 Fiduciary Management
The key monogement personnelwho held office during the period ended 30th

Jvne,2024 ond who hod direct fiduciory responsibility were os shown below:

Toble l: Key monogemenl personnel in office during the period ended
30m June,2024

2.5 Fiduciary Oversight Arrangement

The Authority hos five stonding Boord committees which ore oligned to the
Authority's mondote ond functions. The committees hove been set up with cleor
terms of reference to focilitote efficient ond effective decision-moking in

dischorging its duties, powers, ond outhorities os they meet from time to time.
These committees ore os follows:

IPOA Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 30rh June, 2024

^-.

FullYeorI Elemo Holoke, SS Director/CEO & Boord

tl o

Secreto

FullYeor
Deputy Director, lnspections,
Monitoring ond Preventive
Services

2. Munene M
Mugombi

Full YeorDeputy Director, lnvestigotions &
Forensic Services

3. Emmonuel Logot

Full YeorDeputy Direclor, Finonce ond
Plonning

4 Mohomed Adon

With effect from
3,d Jvne N24

7 More Jillo Deputy Director, Humon
Resource ond Administrotion

With effect from l'l
Jvly 2023 to 28th
Februory 2024

8. Ag. Deputy Direclor, Humon
Resource ond Administrotion

Dr. Solomon
Lemunen, PhD

With effeciftom lst

Morch 2O24lo2na
June 2024

9 Josphot Korindi Ag. SAD, Humon Resource ond
Administrotion

FullYeorSAD Risk ond Audit10. Enosh Nyobibo

FullYeorSAD Procurement11. Fredrick Chobori

REMARKSNAME DESIGNAIlON

rt xxlv
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2.5.1 Finance and Administration Gommittee
The Committee reviews onnuol budgets ond procurement plons, quorterly ond
onnuol finonciol reports. The Committee olso provides oversight on ICT ond
odminlstrotion issues within the Authority. The members ore listed below;

2.5.2 Technical Gommittee
The Committee provides oversight over the Authority's core functions i.e.
comploints monogement, legol services, investigotions, inspections, reseorch,
ond monitoring functions. The members ore listed below; -

2.5.3 Human Resource Committee
The Committee is responsible for orgonizotionol structure, recruitment of stoff,
development of humon resource policy, stoff troining ond development, review
of solories ond benefit pockoges. The Committee olso mokes recommendotions
for brood guidelines thot promote operotionolefficiency. The members ore listed
below; -

More Jillo

I Hon. John Woigonjo Choirperson
2 Fotumo Mohomed. MBS Member
1 Dr. Jonothon Lodompui,MBS Member
4 Doreen Muthouro, MBS Member
q Mohomed Adon DDFP/Secretory

NO. NAME

I Dr. Wolter Ogony,MBS Choirperson
2 Dr. (Hons) Proxedes Tororey, MBS Member
J Dr. Jonothon Lodompui, MBS Member
4 Doreen Muthouro, MBS Member
q Munene M. Mugombi DDIMPS/Joint Secretory
6 Emmonuel Logot DDIFS/Joint Secretory
7 Cotherine Gichuki DDLS/Joint Secretory
a Dr. Ruth Koguto, PhD SA D-C M/J oint Secretory

DESIGNAIIONNO. NAME

L] tl o
I Doreen Muthouro, MBS Choirperson
2. Fotumo Mohommed, MBS Member
3 Dr. (Hons) Proxedes Tororey, MBS Member
4. Hon. John Woigonjo Member
E DDHRA/Secretory

DESIGNATIONNO. NAME

xx
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Dennis Oketch

2.5.5 Audit committee
The Committee works closely with the internol oudit unit ond ploys o criticol role
in reviewing finonciol informotion ond ensuring thot the system of internol controls
is effectively odministered. lt considers significont oudit findings identified by the
Authority's internol ond externol ouditors. The Committee mointoins oversight on
internol controls, ond mokes recommendotions on finonciol informotion, risk

monogement, policies ond oudit issues. The members ore listed below; -

Doniel Nyogo who wos olternote to CS - Notionol Treosury exited in Jonvory,2024
ond reploced by Lucy Mugwe with effect from Morch ,2024.

2.6 Other oversight arrangement

2.6.{ Budget implementation Gommittee
The key responsibility of the committee wos to oversee the budget
implementotion ond odvise the Accounting Officer on the performonce of the
onnuol budget. The members ore listed below; -

Choirperson
tlo

l Fotumo Mohommed, MBS
MemberDr. (Hons) Proxedes Tororey, MBS2
Member3 Dr. Jonothon Lodompui, MBS
Member4 Doreen Muthouro, MBS

SAD-CC/Secretory(

DESIGNAIIONNO. NAME

Choirperson
uo

I Dr. lrene Cherono, PhD
Member2. Dr. Josephine Mondere, PhD
Member? Dr. (Hons) Proxedes Tororey, MBS

Member/Alternote to CS, NT4 Lucy Mugwe
SAD-R&A/Secretory( Enosh Nyobibo

DESIGNATIONNO. NA'iAE

otl

ChoirpersonI Emmonuel Logot
Member2. Mourice Mugombi
Member3. Mohomed Adon
Member4 Dr. Ruth Koguto, PhD
Member5 Dr. Solomon Lemunen, PhD
Member6 Festus Kinoti
Member7 Fredrick Chobori

DESIGNATIONNO. NAME

xxvl

2.5.4 Communication and Outreach Gommittee
The Committee is chorged with the Authority's communicotion ond outreoch
function ond progroms. The members ore listed below; -



9 Dennis Oketch Member
t0 Kennedy Ndire Member
ll.
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B Luc Won ohi Member

A otho Che koech Secreto
Dr. Solomon Lemunen exited on 28ih Februory, 2024 ond wos reploced by Josphot
Korindi.

2.6.2 Public Finance Management Standing Gommittee
The overoll responsibility of the committee wos to provide strotegic guidonce
ond coordinotion of monogement of public finonce for the Authority. The
members ore listed below; -

r3. Mohomed Adon Secreto

o I] t)

I Elemo Holoke Choirperson
2 Mourice Mugombi Member

Emmonuel Logot Member
4 Cotherine Gichuki Member
5 Member
6 Lucy Wonjohi Member
7 Member
o

Dennis Oketch
Kennedy Ndire

9 Agotho Chepkoech Member
r0. Enosh Nyobibo Member
ll Bethuel Sugut
12. Josphot Korindi Member

DESlGNATIONNO. NAME
I

3.

Fredrick Chobori

Member

Member
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I ACK Garden Annex, 2ndl3rdFloor,
lst Ngong Avenue
P O Box 23035-00100
Nairobi.

Auditor-General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Tower
P O Box 30084-00100
Nairobi.

TEL: +254 20 4906 000,

email: info@ipoa.go.ke. Website
www.ipoa.go.ke

Attorney General
State law office, Harambee Ave
P O Box 401l2-00200
Nairobi.

HEADQUATER OUR CONTACTS

lNDEPENDENT AUDITOR PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISOR

OUR BANKERS

Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue Street,
P O Box 60000, 00200
Nairobi.

Cooperative Bank
Co-operative House Branch,
Haile Selassie Avenue,
P.O. Box 48231 -00100
Nairobi.

National Bank
Hill Branch, NHIF
Building,
Nairobi.

xrr iii

2.7 Entity

$
I
!
t

a
t
I



Nairobi ACK Garden Annex,
4th Floor, lstNgong Avenue,
P O Box 23035-00100
NAIROBI.

Email: nairobi@ipoa.go.ke

Central Square Building,
Opposite Barclays Bank,
P.O Box 356040'100, Kisumu
Tel: 0799 862244.E- EjL
kisumu@ipoa.qo. ke

Daaron Foundation Trust Building,
Opposite Nala Community
Hospital,
P.O. Box 1642-50100, Kakamega,
Telephone: 020 440 3549.

Email: kakamega@ipoa.go.ke

Assumption Centre, Opposite St.
Paul University,
P.O. Box 2400-20100, Nakuru,
Telephone: 020 440 1076.
Email: nakuru@ipoa.go.ke
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Ntara Place,
P.O. Box 203-60200, Meru,
Telephone: 020 201 7237.
Email: meru@ipoa.go.ke

County Mall, Next to Veterinary
Department,
P.O. Box 30-10'100, Nyeri,
Telephone: 020 200 4664.
Email: nyeri@ipoa.go.ke

Kerio Valley Oevelopment
Authority (KVDA) Annex Plaza,
P.O. Box 109-30100, Eldoret,
Telephone: 020 440 3548.

Email: eldoret@ipoa.go.ke

2.8 Regional Offices

a
KAKAMEGAoNAIROBIo

MERUo

MOMBASAO GARISSAo NYERIo

KISUMUo NAKURUo
ELDORETo

xx rx

MombasaJubilee lnsurance
Building (Arcade) along Moi
Avenue,P.O Box 99758-801 07
Kilindini, Mombasa,
Tel:0799 019998.
E-mail: mombasa@ipoa.oo.ke

Mohamud H. Mohamed House,
Off Kismayu Road,Behind Texas
Petrol Station,P.O Box 1261-
70100, Garissa,Tel: 0777 040400.
E-mail: qarissa@iooa.qo.ke
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The Authority wos estoblished through on Act of Porlioment.
lndependent Policing Oversight Authority Act Cop 86 of the Lows of
Kenyo (IPOA Act) to provide for civilion oversight of the work of the
Police. The vision ond the mission of the Authority is to promote public
trust ond confidence in the Notionol Police Service by conducting
independent ond importiol investigotions, inspections, oudits ond
monitoring of the Notionol Police Service to enhonce professionolism ond
discipline of the Service.

The Authority dischorges its mondote in occordonce with the provisions

in the Act. The Authority's roodmop to ochieve success is embedded in the
Strotegic Plon for FY 2019-2024. The strotegic objectives oddress the key
chollenges focing civilion police oversight ond ore oligned to the
Authority s mondote.

The occounting officer is occountoble to the Notionol Assembly in

occordonce to Section (68) of the Public Finonce Monogement (PFM)

Act of 2012,in ensuring thot the public resources ore used in o woy thot
is lowful ond outhorised; effective ond efficient; economicol ond
tronsporent. This role is dischorged vis-o-vis the principles of good
governonce ond the oversight of the Boord envisoged in the provisions of
Section (8) of the IPOA Act.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible to the Boord for the doy to
doy monogement of the offoirs of the Authority.

Gorporate Governance Principles
ln pursuit of the corporote objective, the Authority is committed to the
highest level of good governonce. IPOA strives to foster o culture thot
upholds the Constitution of Kenyo (2010), volues ond rewords
exemplory performonce within cleor ethicol stondords, corporote
integrity, upholding respect for oll ond sofeguording notionol interest.

The Boord dischorges its role ond functions in complionce with the
enobling lows, rules ond regulotions. IPOA Act, identifies the roles ond
functions of the Boord which should be exercised collectively. The roles

3. STATEMENT OF GOVERNANGE
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ond functions include octuolizotion of the orgonizotion's vision, mission,
purpose ond core volues; to set ond oversee the overoll strotegy ond
opprove polices of the Authority; opprove the onnuol work plon,
budget ond Procurement Plon; monitor the orgonizotion's
performonce, ensure sustoinobility ond effective communicotion with
stokeholders.

The Boord governs the Authority consistent with the volues of Independent,
lntegrity ond occountobility, importiolity, professionolism ond
occessibility oll contributing to the commitment to tronsporency ond
high-quolity governonce system.

Constitution of the Board
The Boord is oppointed by the President through the recommendotion of
the selection ponel, upon opprovol by the Notionol Assembly pursuont to
Sec. I I of IPOA Act.

Size and composition of the Board
During the reporting yeor, the Boord consisted of o choirperson, o vice
choirperson ond five (5) members; the choirperson of KNCHR (ex-officio
member). The Director wos secretory to theBoord.

The skills motrix for the Boord consisfs of individuols who possess extensive
experience in vorious disciplines, which ore opplicoble in the overoll
governonce of the Authority ond ochieved the right bolonce of skills
ond experience necessory in decision moking in line with Sec. 9 ond
Sec. l0 of IPOA Act.

Board Gommittee
The Boord hod five stonding oversight Committees nomely;Technicol,
Finonce & Administrotion, Communicotion & Outreoch, Humon
Resource ond Audit which ore oligned to the Authority's mondote ond
functions.

The Audit committee consists of consists of two (2) independent oudit
committee members sourced competitively, one (1 ) commissioner ond
one (l) Notionol Treosury representotive. The oudit committee held nine
(9) meetings during the period under review.

a
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Management Gommittee
The Authority hos estoblished monogement stonding committee
consisting of the CEO, Directors ond Heod of Deportments for the
overoll doy to doy implementotion of policies ond procedures to
ensure efficient service delivery.

Risk Management, Compliance and Gonflict of lnterest
The Authority risk monogement involves the prooctive identificotion,
evoluotion ond prioritizotion of risks followed by coordinoted ond
economicol opplicotion of resources to minimize, monitor ond control
the probobility or impoct of unfortunote events thot will offect the
reolizotion of orgonizotionol gools. The Authority declores conflict of
interest in oll its meetings.

Training and Development in Governance
Ihe Authority hod troining on doto protection by office of doto controller. The

troining of stoff is cruciol to ensure the sofeguording of sensitive informotion.

Given the noture of their work, stoff members regulorly hondle personol doto
ond confideniiol records ond lhis will equip them with the knowledge ond skills

to comply with doto protection lows, mointoin the integrity of the informotion,
ond prevent unouthorized occess. ln oddition, the monogement were troined
on corporote governonce by the lnstitute of Certified Secretories. This wos

essentiol for fostering ethicol leodership ond robust decision-moking to
enhonce the monogement's understonding of governonce principles,

including tronsporency, occountobility, ond stokeholder engogement.

Compliance with laws and regulations among others
The Authority regulorly reviews its internolcontrolsystems to ensure occurocy
of finonciol reports, efficiency ond effectiveness of operotions ond
complionce to rules ond regulotions. ln the FY 2023-2024, the Authority strictly

odhered to the provisions of the rule of low os enshrined in the Kenyo
Constitution 2010 on monogement of public finonce, provisions of PFM Act
2012, PPADA 2015 ond its ottendont regulotions, ony other relevont lows,
guidelines ond procedure monuols thot support the dischorge of its
mondote.

The Authority hos observed the code of ethics in oll finonciol motters. The

oversight bodies hove not reported ony finonciol improbity or ony
governonce issues.

xxxt I
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It is my unreserved honour to present this onnuol report ond finonciol
stotements for the finonciol yeor 202312024. Annvol reports ore on
honest depiction of the Boord ond monogement's pledge towords
committed ond sustoinoble service delivery; in our cose, interventions
for the promotion of professionolism in the Notionol Police Service.

ln driving our trojectory, my Boord ond monogement hove focused on
the design ond implementotion of strotegies to ensure reolisotion of the
strotegic objectives set out in the strotegic plon 2019-2024. This strotegy
hos been delivered through periodic review ond refocusing of oll our
efforts fo ensure ottoinment of public confidence ond trust in policing;
strengthening of colloborotion with our stokeholders; sustoinoble
generotion of evidence-bosed policy ond promotion of corporote best
proctice. We believe thot through this, Kenyo will enjoy enhonced
complionce to humon rights stondords ond fundomentolfreedoms.

Apprecioting thot the Strotegic Plon operoting period lopsed on June 30th

2024,|he Boord hos guided through cleor directives how the institution con
ottoin operotionol sustoinobility pending development of o new strotegic
plon, with strengthened objectives to oddress gops on lessons leornt from
the 2019-2024 plon.

During the reporting period, the Authority drofted ond finolized its
regulotions known os the lndependent Policing Oversight Authority
(Generol) Regulotions, 2024. The regulotions were developed utilizing
internol copocity ond expertise under the stewordship of the Boord.
Pursuont to Article l0 of the Constitution, the regulotions were exposed
to rigorous pu blic ond sto keholders' porticipotion. The Regulotion s 2024
were gozetted by the Attorney Generol's Office ond were loid before
the Notionol Assembly's Porliomentory Committee on Delegoted
Legislotion on l2th June, 2024 for noting.

These ochievements oside, the Authority encountered vorious chollenges in
implementing its torgets during this period. This included inodequote
funding ond incidents of non-cooperotion from the Notionol Police
Service. To oddress these chollenges, the Authoriiy plons to engoge the
leodership of the Notionol Police Service, Notionol Assembly, Notionol
Treosury ond Cobinet Secretory lnterior ond Notionol Administrotion.

4. STATEME}IT BY THE GHAIRPERSOil
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The Authority oppreciotes oll its stokeholders for their steodfost focus on
sustoinoble police reforms. Porticulorly, IPOA thonks the Ministry of
lnterior ond Notionol Administrotion, the Office of Director of Public
Prosecutions, the Judiciory, Notionol Police Service, Notionol Police Service

Commission, Witness Protection Agency, Kenyo Notionol Commission on
Humon Rights, Ethics ond Anti-Corruption Commission, Commission on
Administrotive Justice ond non-stote octors for the continued support
ond cooperotion. The Authority olso ocknowledges the support ond
role ployed by its development portners.

Lostly, os our term os Members of the IPOA Boord drows to o close, I would like

to thonk my fellow members of the Boord for their continued
commitment to the mondote ond ideols of the Authority. I would olso
like to thonk the CEO, monogement ond stoff for their sustoined unity
of purpose to reolising their respective functions. As we consolidote oll
the goins mode so for in the lost reporting period, we look forword to
yet onother fruitful yeor of guording public interest in policing.

Mrs. Anne Mokori, EBS

Choirperson
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I present the Annuol Report ond Finonciol Stotements for lndependent
Policing Oversight Authority for the yeor ended 301h June 2024. Ihe
Authority hos continued to execute its mondote of promoting public trust
ond confidence in the Notionol Police Service.

ln the Finonciol yeor 2023124, the Authority s finol opproved budget wos
Kshs. 1054.49 million ond octuol expenditure wos Kshs. 1,036.77 which tronslotes
to o positive obsorption rote of 98 per cent resulting to improved
implementotion of the plonned octivities for the finonciolyeor.

During the reporting period, the Authority received ond processed 4095
comploints ond completed 895 investigotions. 120 cose files were
forworded to the ODPP for oction. As ot 30th June 2024,182 cose files were
before courts (136 criminols ond 46 civil coses). IPOA conducted 9lB
inspections of police premises, including detention focilities under the
control of the Notionol Police Service ond77 Police operotions monitored.
Bosed on the findings orising from inspection ond monitoring operotions,
the Authority mode recommendotions to the NPS ond other stote orgons
for implementotion.

The Authority developed ond reviewed vorious internol policies to
enhonce fromeworks for execution of the Authority's work. The policies
ensured complionce with legol ond regulotory requirements besides
odvoncing civilion policing oversight within the reporting period. The
Authority trocked level of implementotion of its recommendotions by the
NPS in 178 police stotions spreod ocross 32 counties to gouge uptoke of
the soid recommendotions.

Following opprovol of the Humon Resource instruments, the Authority
implemented the new groding structure ond solories for the cycle Fy
202312024. The period olso sow finolizotion of drofting of IPOA regulotions.
The some wos enocted ond gozetted within the reporting period ond is

pending implementotion. The Authority olso emborked on preporotion of
the boord end term performonce report for the currenf boord whose term
comes to on end on 3l't August 2024.

5. STATEMENT OF THE ACCOUilTING OFFICER
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I thonk the Boord for their leodership ond guidonce throughout the yeor
ond the members of stoff for their commitment towords ochievement
of the set torgets. I olso thonk our stokeholders for their support ond look
forword to cordiol ond productive working relotionship.

e, SS

Di re /Chief Execulive Officer
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6. STATEilIENT OF PERFORMANGE AGAII{ST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY2O23N4

The Authority's progroms ond octivities ore oligned to the four Key Results
Areos of the current five-yeor strotegic plon 2019 - 2024, the Bottom-up
Economic Tronsformotion Agendo (BETA) ond other economic development
blue prints. Eoch strotegic objective oddresses porticulor needs for continuous
improvement of performonce of the overoll objective on promoting public
trust ond confidence in the Notionol Police Service. The four (a) Key Results
Areos ore os below;

-

Police

Accounlobility

Slokeholder
cooperotion &

complemenlority

Reseorch &
lnformolion

Monogemenl

lnslilulionol
Copocity

ln reolizotion of the Key Results Areos, the Authority implemenfed vorious
progroms which informed the preporotion of the onnuol work plon ond
budget for the finonciol year 2023124. The FY 2023124 Annuol Work plon ond
Budget wos bosed on the fourth Medium-Term Plon of vision 2030 ond builds
on the progress mode in the previous finonciol yeor. The Authority continues
to oddress the policy, legol, regulotory ond governonce issues to ottoin its

mondote on guording public interest in policing.

aaa
III

KEY RESULT AREAS
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o Aport from the interventions under the strotegic objectives, other emerging
dynomics offected the performonce of the Authority. During the yeor, the

budget cut hod negotive effects on the Authority performonce os shown in
the toble below:

Programme and sub-prog ramme Non-Financia! performance report

100% NIL A total of 4,095
complaints were
received and
processed through
internal complaints
handling mechanism
and others through
referral to other
agencies for further
action.

Number of
complainls received
and processed.

100%

-185 The variance of 185

was due to budget
rationalization.

1080 895Number of
investigations

completed.

120 investigation files
were forwarded to
the ODPP for action

1000/0 100% NILNumber of files
submitted lo the
ODPP for further
action.

As at 30ih June
2024, 136 criminal
and 46 civil case
files were ongoing
before courls

100% 100% NILCases before courts

10 police ofticers
were convicted in

the FY 2023124
following
investigation by the
Authority

100% NILNumber of
Convictions

The negative
variance was due to
insufficiency of the
budget. The
recommendations
arising from
inspections were
shared to NPS and
other stakeholders
for action.

960 918 42

Enhanced police
accountability

Number of police
facilities and premises
inspected.

Police
oversight
seryrces

To promote
public trust
and
confidence in
the
National Police
Service.

i

Variance CommentsTarget
FY

2023124

Actual
Performance
FY 2023124

Key resulb Area lndicatorProgram Objective

100%
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Number of police
operations monitored

80 ? 77 policing

operations were
monitored which
were malorly public
order management
operations during
"gen z" protests

Stakeholder
Cooperation and
Complementarity
strengthened.

Number of dialogue
sessions held with the
members of National
Police Service.

9 3 12 of the targeted I
dialogue sessions
were conducted
aimed at enhancing
collaboration and
police

accountability.

lnstitutional
capacity
slrengthened

Proportion of funds
absorbed.

100% 98% 2o/o The under
absorption is due to
delayed recruitment
of replacement of
stafi

/

Program Objective Key results Area lndicator Target
FY

2023124

Actual
Performance
FY 2023t24

Variance Comments

12
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The Authority's overoll performonce is bosed on its key interventions ond
plonned torgets in line with the strotegic plon 2019-2024. Presented below
ore the discussions ond onolysis of Authority's performonce for the
period underreview:

7.1.1 Financial Performance
During the period under review, o revenue of Kshs 1,041.20 million wos
receiied ond roised ogoinst on expenditure of Kshs. 1,036.77 million resuliing in

on operotionol surplus of Kshs.4.43 million.

The comporotive onolysis of revenUe ond expenditure in the previous
yeor ond the yeor under review ore os presented below:

Revenue ond Expendilure Trends
1,200.00

1,000.00

800.00

600.00

400.00

200.00

=

E
Y

I REVENU E

r EXPENDITU RE

- 
SURPLUS/DEFICIT

2023124

I ,04I .20

t .036.7 7

4.43

2022t23

910.92

906,36

4.57

202t /22

879 .93

879.67

0.26

7,1.2 Operalional Performance

Over o four-yeor period between fY202012021 ond FY202312024, the
Authorily's performonce in mondote oreos of Comploints receipt ond
processing, investigotions, inspections ond monitoring hos been improving.

Comploints received ond processed grew by 13.6%, to 4095 in the 2023124

compored to 3606 in the previous yeor. The number of investigotions

completed rose by 2.2% to 895 in FY2023124 while the No. of lnspections

conducted rose by 22.1%to 918 in FY 2023124 compored to752 conducted in

7. MANAGEMEiIT DISCUSSIO]II AND AI{ALYSIS
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FY 2022123. Monitoring of police operotions ond submission of files to oDppp
performonce voried ocross the 4 yeors with cycles of increose ond decreose
in the four-yeor period. The growth in these oreos is illustroted in the grophs
below:

Comploinls received & processed

5000
4095

4000 3,606
3,302

3000
2B8 r

2000

r000

Fy 2020t2021 Fy 2021t2022 Fy 202212023 Fy 202312024

Police Focililies lnspecled ond Police Operolions Monilored

9lB

o

0

r000

800

600

400

200

n

752
6r5

272

FY 20201202r FY 202112022

r Police premises inspected

77

I
FY 202212023 FY 202312024

r Police Operotions monitored

67
I

70
I

122

I
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r000

800

600

400

200

0

Compleled lnvesligolions ond Files Submitted lo DPP

862 876 895

727

141

I
r35

I
120

I
FY 202212023 FY 202312024

r Files Submitted to ODPP

tvo

I
FY 20201202r FY 202112022

I lnvestigotion Completed

7.{.3 Compliance with statutory requirements

During the yeor under review, the Authority complied with oll its stotutory
obligotions including complionce to public procurement regulotions,
remittonce of P.A.Y.E, NHIF, NSSF, NITA ond HELB within the stipuloted
deodlines. The Authority does not foresee ony potentiol for contingent
liobilities orising from non-complionce with stotutory obligotions.

7.1.4 Enterprise Risk Management

The Authority's risk monogement involves the prooctive identificotion,
evoluotion ond prioritizotion of risks followed by coordinoted ond economicol
opplicotion of resources to minimize, monitor ond control the probobility or

impoct of unfortunote events thot will offect the reolizotion of orgonizotionol
gools.

7.1.5 Key projects and investment decisions the Authority is planning/lmplementing

The key project the Authority is currently implementing is the Enierprise

Resource Plonning (ERP) system which is supported by o development portner.

ln the medium term, the Authority is plonning on the project which will entoil
the ocquisition of lond, design ond construction of IPOA heodquorter ond olso

estoblish more regionol offices to bring service (s) closer to the citizens.
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8.,l Sustainability strategy and profile

The Authority hos continued to moke sustoinoble ond business
continuity efforts to ensure thot the institution remoins o going concern
by implementing the strotegies in the SP (2019- 2024). Such efforts hove
included reoching out to the Notionol Assembly ond the Notionol
Treosury for enhonced onnuol budgets to sustoin operotions, ond
implementotion of its mondote. Further, the Authority hos engoged
development portners to provide technicol support in form of
equipment ond troining. IPOA envisions on increosed budgetory
ollocotion ond enhonced resource mobilizotion to sustoin its strotegic
objectives.

IPOA's Strotegic Plon prioritizes institutionol copocity os o criticol key result
oreo. This seeks to promote corporote governonce, strengthen humon
resource copocity ond ensure institutionol finonciol sustoinobility. lt olso
oims of strengthening business systems ond internol processes to ensure
quolity ond sustoinoble focus of oll its progrommes ond octivities on
civilion police oversight.

The Authority wos ronked os o winner of Finonciol Reporting (FiRe) Aword in
the lost yeor ond other five consecutive finonciol yeors, in the
Constitutionol Commissions ond lndependent offices under IPSAs cosh
occounting cotegory. ln recognition of the excellence exhibited by the
legol directoroie in provision of legolservices, Noirobi Low society of Kenyo
through the Noirobi Legol Awords Trust, oworded the legol deportment, the
prestigious oword of the public sector legol deportment of the yeor 2023 (lst
runners up).

To serve the public effectively, the Authority hos estoblished 9 regionol
offices in Noirobi. Momboso, Kisumu, Gorisso, Meru, Nyeri, Nokuru,
Eldoret ond Kokomego with over 100 officers deployed ocross these
stotions to enoble them execute the Authority's mondote ot the locol
level. The Authority plons to estoblish odditionol regionol offices ond is

olso exploring the option of deploying its services ot the H udumo Centres
ocross the country.

E

8. ENVI ROIIIMENTAL AIIID SUSTAI NABI LITY REPORTI NG

Additionolly, in recognition of the volue ond excellence of his work in pushing
the boundories of whot is possible in the pursuit of justice ond legol
excellence, the Noirobi Low Society of Kenyo, through the Noirobi Legol
Awords Trust oworded Mr. Festus Kinoti Heod, Legol Deportment IPOA, the
Public Sector Lowyer of the yeor 2023 (lst Runner up).
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The Authority hos on HR policies ond procedure monuol, which
subscribes to the tenets of public Service volues ond principles in the

recruitment of stoff , os provlded under Articles l0 ond 232 of the Consiitution.

Stoff ore subjected to o performonce opproisol system whose output,
omongst other ospects, is the identificotion of oreos of improvement
ond troining.

The lndependent Policing Oversight Authority Generol Regulotions,
2024 wos gozetted on 2$n Moy,2024 vide Legol Notice No' 96 to
supplement the lPoA Act 20'l l. Enoctment of these regulotions
provides o solid fromework for conducting the Authority's technicol
work which will leod to greoter tronsporency ond occountobility in the
Notionol Police Service. The Authority continues to embed risk

monogement function in its strotegic operotions for sustoinobility. ln

oddition, the Authority continues to digitize its work processes.

8.2 Environmental performance /climate change/ mitigation of natural disasters

The Authority is committed to environmentol performonce ond climote
chonge mitigotion os guided by the Environmentol Monogement ond
Co-ordinotion Act No.8 of 1999 (EMCA).

The Authority hos implemented o Comprehensive woste monogement
system thot includes strotegicolly ploced woste bins, o service level

ogreement for efficient woste collection ond disposol, ond electronic
Communicotion in fovour of printed moteriols. These initiotives hove
resulted in o significont reduction in woste ond emissions.

The Authority is olso committed to increosing forest cover through tree
plonting ond other initiotives. The corporote sociol responsibility initiotive
prioritizes this gool, ond we hove olso implemented electronic woste

disposol, lT osset shoring, ond the circulotion of digitol documents, oll of
which hove minimized environmentol pollution. The Authority hos

estoblished disoster recovery sites to mitigote ogoinst loss of doto in the

event of noturol disoster.

The Authority is committed to mitigotion of noturol disosters. This is done
through hoving in ploce severol meosures thot include but ore not
limited to:
o. Yeorly conduct of Security Risk Anolysis (SRA) thot identifies noturol

disosters thot could pose risks to the Authority, identificotion of their
likelihood ond putting in ploce meosures to mitigote those risks.
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b. The oppointment of Security Monogement Advisory Committee. The
committee hondles ollemerging issues including noturordisosters to
sofeguord stoff sofety ond security.

c. The oppointment of o Heolth Sofety ond Environment (SHE)

committee. This committee hondles oll motters reloting to stoff sofety
ond heolth. ond puts in ploce meosures to mitigote ollwork reloted risks.

8.3 Employee Welfare

The Authority's recruitment process is guided by constitution, relevont low,
PSC HR guidelines ond its internol Humon Resource policies ond
Procedures Monuol. The bosis of oppointments ond promotions is through
foir competition ond merit while considering representotion of Kenyo s

diverse communities, regionol bolonce ond morginolized groups in
porticulor women ond persons with disobility. The Authority's current
estoblishment hos employees from neorly oll ethnic groups in Kenyo ond
the gender representotion is compliont to the 2/3 requiement. The
Authority hos olso recruited Persons with Disobilities (pWDs).

The Authority hos continued to support the estoblished lpoA Stoff welfore
Schemes which includes pension scheme, the lpoA socco cooperotive
society, the lPoA stoff welfore Associotion ond lpoAs stoff cor loon ond
mortgoge. The Authority olso hos o comprehensive stoff medicol scheme
ond o group life cover ond WIBA insuronce for its employees.

The Authority provides Psychosociol support ond psycho-educotion for it's
stoff members through the provision of troumo monogement for oll officers
in the Technicol deportments nomely the investigotors, inspection ond
Monitoring officers, ond comploints monogement officers. The Authority
olso rolled oul progroms on copocity building for B0 officers within the
Authority on Troumo lnformed core, personol security monogement ond
vicorious Troumo. There is ongoing stress ond burnout monogement ocross
oll the deportments. All these efforts ore done to ensure thot stoff members
ore promptly debriefed, thot their welfore is cotered for ond thot they work
in o heolthy ond emotionolly secure environment.

S.40perational Practices

8.4.1 Responsible competition practice
The Authority procurement function hos on estoblished system of
competitive ond responsible business proctices onchored on the Kenyon
constitution 2010, the Public Procurement ond Asset Disposol Act 2015 ond
the Public Procurement ond Asset Disposol Regulotions 2020. The Authority
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mointoins o free ond foir Competitive procurement system. Towords this

end, the Authority:'1. Advertises for procurement opportunities through the print medio
(MyGov) ond further publishes the ovoiloble procurement
opportunities in the Governments' public procurement
informotion portol; tenders.go.ke, its website; www.ipoo.go.ke
ond noticeboords within the institution.

2. Open tendering is the preferred method of mojor procurement
opportunities in the Authority os required under section 9lond 96

of the Public Procurement ond Asset Disposol Act, 2015.

3. Ensures oll suppliers tendering for goods ond services sign Tender

self Declorotion Forms - sD I & SD2, os required under Regulotion
47 of Public Procurement Regulotion 2020.

4. Ensures oll suppliers complete ond sign the Tender securing
Declorotion Form os required under Regulotion 146 &155(2) of the
Public Procurement Regulotions 2020.

5. Complies with the requirement for preferenCe ond reservotion
schemes for the criticol sectors of the society by offering of leost
30% of procurement opportunities to the Youth, Women. Persons

Living with Disobilities (PWDs) ond morginolized suppliers ihough
on open ond competitive process os required under section 157

(12) & (13), of the public procurement ond Asset Disposol Act,
2015.

6. ln FY 202312024, incuned on expenditure of Kshs. 29.7 Million on

the speciol cotegory ogoinst o reserved omount of Kshs. 27.9

Million, thus tronsloting to 32% of the totol budget ollocotion for
the speciol groups, os required under section 57 subsection l3 (o)

of the Public Procurement Act of 2015.

7. Ensures the requirement of Locol Content (Buy Kenyo Build

Kenyo) purchoses by ensuring thot ot leost 40% of oll its

procurement opportunities is ollocoted to locol suppliers. This

promotes competition for locol goods ond services ond thus the
growth of the locol industrY.

B. Conducts morket surveys on need bosis ond further seeks
professionol odvice from experts to ensure thot the pricing for
goods, works ond services ore within the morket trends.
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8.4.2 Responsible Supply Chain and supplier relations
l. The Authority ot oll times offers controcts ond/or LpO(s)/LSO(s) to

its suppliers/Controctors to signify controctuol obligotion
between the two porties.

2. The Authority hos on open customer service line during working
hours ond o procurement emoil where suppliers engoge on
procurement issues.

3. The Authority inspects oll supplies for goods, works ond services
on delivery ond once occepted ore poid for prompfly within 30
doys from the dote of occeptonce.

4. The Authority engoges its suppliers regulorly to review
performonce ond updote on poyments.

5. The Authority hos hod no legol dispute with ony of its suppliers
since inception.

6. Ihe Authority hos no pending bills for the supply ond services for
the reporting period.

8.5 Community Engagements
The Authority heightened its commitment to engoge the community, the
Notionol Police Service officers ond other stokeholders with on oim of
empowering them with knowledge on policing.Ihese engogements were
conducted through holding focus group discussions, diologue sessions.
sensitizotion forums ond biloterol institutionol meetings with identified ond
prioritized stokeholders. This included Stote ond Non-stote octors, non-
governmentol orgonizotions, civil society ond electorol observer missions.
Ihese engogements strengthened the existing cooperotion between
IPOA ond the stokeholders.

Further, the Authority olso expressed its position on public interest motters
physicolly ond through press stotements disseminoted ocross vorious
internotionol ond locol medio. ln the period, lPoA mointoined informed
stokeholders through its website, blogsite ond sociol medio plotforms os
well.

These empowerment sessions, considered os sociol responsibility
engogements by IPOA hove impocted the society positively through
protection of civil rights, supporting effective policing, ensuring greoter
occountobility on the port of the police, enhoncing tronsporency ond
public reporting of police misconduct ond contributing towords building
trust between the community ond the police.

xlr ii
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ipoA Commissioner, Fotumo M. Mohomed, M$s, sensilizes police officers undergoing o promo tionol
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The Authority's stoff in support to the flood victims mode contribution in-kind
donotions inform of essentiol supplies such os food, clothing, ond hygiene items
through the Red Cross to olleviote the suffering of those offected.
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IPOA CEO, Mr. Elemo Holoke, ond senior monogement stoff presenled donotion of relief tood f or f lood
victims to Kenyo Red Cross
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Section Bl (l) of the Public Finonce Monogement Act, 2012 requires thot, ot
the end of eoch finonciol yeor, the Accounting Officer for o Notionol
Government Entity sholl prepore finonciol stotements in respect of thoi
entity. Section 8l (3) requires the finonciol stotements so prepored to be in
o form thot complies with relevont oCCounting stondords oS prescribed
the Public Sector Accounting Stondords Boord of Kenyo from time to
time.

The Accounting Officer in chorge of the lndependent Policing Oversight
Authority (IPOA) is responsible for the preporotion ond presentotion of
the entity s finonciol stotements, which give o true ond foir view of the
stote of offoirs of the entity for ond os of the end of the finonciol yeor
ended on June 30,2024. This responsibility includes:

l. Mointoining odequote finonciol monogement orrongements ond
ensuring thot these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period
2. Mointoining proper occounting records, which disclose with
reosonoble occurocy of ony time the finonciol position of the entity.
occurocy of ony time the finonciol position of the entity
3. Designing, implementing ond mointoining internol controls relevont
to the preporotion ond foir presentotion of the finonciol stotements,
ond ensuring thot they ore free from moteriol misstotements, whether
due to error or froud,
4.Sofeguording the ossets of the entity;

5.Selecting ond opplying oppropriote occounting policies; ond
5. Moking ocCounting estimotes thot ore reosonoble in the circumstonces

The Accounting Officer occepts responsibility f or the Authority's finonciol
stotements, which hove been prepored on the Cosh Bosis Method of
Finonciol Reporting, using oppropriote occounting policies in

occordonce with lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting Stondords
(tPSAS). The Accounting Officer is of the opinion thot the Authoritys finonciol

stotements give o true ond foir view of the stote of IPOA's tronsoctions
during the finonciol yeor ended June 30, 2024, ond of the Authority's
finonciol position os ot thot dote.

9. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMET{T RESPONSIBILITY

'!



The Accounting Officer in chorge of the lndependent policing
Oversight Authority further confirms the completeness of the
occounting records mointoined for the Authority, which hove been
relied upon in the preporotion of the Authority s finonciol stotements os well os
the odequocy of the systems of internol finonciol control. The
Accounting officer in chorge of the lPoA confirms thot the Authority
hos complied fully with opplicoble Government Regulotions ond the
terms of externolfinoncing covenonts (where opplicoble), ond thot the
Authority s funds received during the yeor under oudit were used for the
eligible purposes for which they were intended ond were properly
occounted for. Further the Accounting officer confirms thot the entity's
finonciol stotements hove been prepored in o form thot complies with
relevont occounting stondords prescribed by the public Sector
Accounting Stondords Boord of Kenyo.

IPOA Annual Report and Financial
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12th

Approva! of the Financial Statements

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved by the Boord on
Auoust.2024 ond signed on its beholf by:

e, ss Mohome on
Ac g Officer/CEO Deputy Direclor, Finonce &

Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON INDEPENDENT POLICING OVERSIGHT
AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2024

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lavufulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulation and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Managemenl Ac|2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of lndependent Policing Oversight
Authority set out on pages 1 lo 17 , which comprise statement of assets and liabilities as
at 30 June, 2024 and the statement of receipts and payments, statement of cash flows,
and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and

Report of the Auditor General on Independent Policing Oversight Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2024



a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the lndependent Policing Oversight Authority as at 30 June, 2024 and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash Basis) and comply with the
lndependent Policing Oversight Authority Act, 2011 and the Public Finance Management
Act,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the lndependent Policing Oversight
Authority Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
signiflcance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other lnformation

Conclusion

o

The Management is responsible for the other information set out on page iv to li which
comprise of Key Authority lnformation and Management, Statement of Governance,
Statement by the Chairperson, Statement of the Accounting Officer, Statement of
Performance Against Predetermined Objectives, Management Discussion and Analysis,
Environmental and Sustainability Reporting and Statement of Management
Responsibilities. The Other lnformation does not include the financial statements and my
audit report thereon.

Basis for Conclusion

ln connection with my audit on the lndependent Policing Oversight Authority financial
statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf
based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Other lnformation, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this
regard.

Report of the Auditor General on lndependent Policing Oversight Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2024

2



REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 3000 and 4000. The standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
assurance about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in
the financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 2315 and 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of the Management and those Charged with Governance

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards
(Cash Basis) and for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Management is aware of the intention to cease operations.

Report of the Auditor General on Independent Policing Oversight Authorityfor the year ended 30 June, 2024
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The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with
Article 229(4) of the Constitution, Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and the
INTOSAI Framework of Professional Pronouncements (IFPP). The Framework requires
that, in conducting the audit, I obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with Section 48
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with IFPP will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

ln conducting the audit, Article 229(6) of the Constitution also requires that I express a
conclusion on whether or not in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions
and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities
that govern them and that public resources are applied in an effective way. ln addition, I

also I consider the entity's control environment in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 (1) (a) of the PublicAuditAct,
2015.

Further, I am required to submit the audit report in accordance with Article 229(7) of lhe
Constitution.

Report of the Auditor Ceneral on Independent Policing Oversight Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2024
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Detailed description of my responsibilities for the audit is located at the Office of the
Auditor-General's website at: https://www.oaekenva.so.ke/auditor-senerals-responsibilities-
for-audit/. This description forms part of my auditor's report.

FCP CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

4 November,2O24

Reporl of the Auditor General on Independent Policing Oversight Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2024
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1I. STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OIHJUilE 2024

Kshs. Kshs.

Receipts

Exchequer Releoses

Totol Receipls

I I ,041 , r 97 ,303

1,041,197.303

659,781 ,037

333,100,3r2

25,400,883

18,483,394

1,036,765,626

910,921,499

910,921,499

519,47 4,913

337 ,167 ,215

44,599,99 4

s,092,994

906,335, r r 5

Payments

Compensotion of Employees

Use of Goods ond Services

Sociol Security Benefits

Acquisition of Assets

TololPoymenls

2

3

4

5

Surplus 4A31$77 4,586,384

The occounting policies ond explonotory notes to these finonciol
stotements form on integrol port of these finonciolstotement.

o ke, SS

cEo
nling Officer/

Mohomed Adon
Deputy Direclor,
Finonce & Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

Descrlplion Note 20?s,12A24 202212023

o
lemo

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved on l2tt'Auqust, 2024
ond signed by:

I
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I2. STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 3()IH JUNE 2024

o
Kshs Kshs

Financial assets

Cosh ond cosh equivolenls

Bonk bolonces

Tololcosh ond cosh equivolenl

Tolol finonciol ossels

Financial liabilities

Third porty deposits ond retention

Net finonciol ossels

Represented by

Fund bolonce b/fwd.
Prior yeor odjustment

Surplus/Deficil for the yeor

Net financial position

6 4,832,388

4,832,388

400,/ I I

4,431,677

4,586,384

(4,s85,384)

4,431,677

4,431,677

5,173,726

5,173,726

587,341

4,586,384

263,166

(263,166)

4,586,384

4,586,384

I
9

The occounting policies ond explonotory notes to these finonciol
stotements form on integrol port of these finonciol stotement.

The Authority 's finonciol stotements were o pproved on l2th Auqusl .2024
ond signed by

cEo

o e,
ng Otficer/

Mohomed on
Deputy Direclor,
Finonce & Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

Mrs. Anne Mokori, EBS

Choirperson of lhe
Boord

Descrlplion Nole 202312024 20All2U23

Elemo
co

,,a'

4,832,388 5,173,726
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,t3. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR EI{DED 3OIH JUNE 2024

Kshs. Kshs.
Receipts for 0perating lncome

Exchequer Releoses
Tolol Receipls for Operoling lncome

I l,04t,l 97 ,303
I ,041 ,l 97,303

910,921,499

910,921,499

Payments for 0perating Expenses

Compensotion of Employees
Use of Goods ond Services
Sociol Security Benefits
Adjusted For:

Prior yeor odjustments
Decreose/(lncreose) in occounts receivoble
lncreose/(Decreose) in deposits ond retention
Nel Cosh FIow from Operoling Aclivilies

(6s9,781 ,0371
(333, r 00,31 2)

(2s,400,883)

(4,s86,384)

(519,47 4,913)
(337 ,t 67 ,21s)
(44,599,9941

(263,1661

97,126
(2,8s0,s87)

6,662,751

9

t0
ll (r86,630)

18,142,056

Mohomed A on
Deputy Direclor,
Finonce & Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

2

3

4

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Acquisition of Asseis 5 (18,483,394) (s,je2,ee4)

Nel Cosh Flows from Invesling Aclivilies (18,483,3e4) (s,0e2,ee4)

Nel lncreose in Cosh & Cosh Equivolenl (34r,s38) 1 ,s6e,7s7

5,173,72s 3,603,968

Cosh ond Cosh Equivolenl of end of lhe yeor 4,832,388 5,173,726

The occounting policies ond expronotory notes to these finonciol
stotements form on integrol port of these finonciol stotement.

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved on 12tn Auo usl,2024
ond signed by:

E ke, SS

aDescd lion Nole 202312024

-

oHo
Acco g Officer/CEO

Cosh ond Cosh Equivolent of Stort of the yeor
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I4. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUT{TS IOR FY 2023124

Receipts

Exchequer
Releoses

Tolol Receipts

Payments

Compensoiion of
Employees

Use of Goods
ond Services

Sociol Security
Benefits

Acquisition of
Assets

Iolols Poymenls

Surplus/Deficit

Kshs

o

639,000,000

36 r ,950,000

23,800,000

27,950,000

r,052,700,000

Kshs

b

Kshs

c= o+b

Kshs Kshs

e=c-dd l=dlc7.

r ,052,700,000 1 ,792,578 1 ,054,492,578 I ,041 , I 97,303 13,295,27 5 99%

l,o52,7oo,ooo 1,792,578 1,054,492,578 1,041,197,303 13,295,275 99%

1,792,578 1,054,492,578

o) Vorionce onolysis:The Authority's overoll obsorption rote is 98%. There wos

no significont underutilizotion of the budget below 90%.

b) Adjustment within lhe yeor: The chonges of Kshs. 1,7?2,578 between the
originol ond the finol budget resulted from odditionol funds ond
reollocotions in Supplementory Estimotes No. I ond ll.

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved on 12th Auq usi.2024
ond signed by

Ele o e,SS Mohome o

33,51 8,400 672,s18,400 659 ,781 ,037 12,737 ,363 98%

124,075,8221 337,874,178 333,100,312 4,773,866 99%

r,700,000 25,500,000 25,400,883 99 ,117 r00%

(9,3s0,000) 18,600,000 18,483,394 I I 6.606 99%

1 ,036,7 65,626

4,431,677

11,726,952 98%

Deputy Direclor,
Finonce & Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

Accou
cEo

I Odglnol
Budget

Adjuslments Flnol Budgel Acluol on
Comporoble
Bosis

Budgel
Ullllzqtlon
Dlfielence

%ol
Ullllzollon

ng Officer/

L
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l4.l SUMMARY STATEMENT 0F APPR0PRIATION: RECURRENT FoR Fy 2oz3t24

Receipl/Expense
llem

Odglnol
Budget

AdJuslmenls Flnol Sudgel Acluol on
Comporoble
Bosir

Budget
Ullllzollon
Dlfierence

I
Kshs

o

Kshs

b

Kshs

c= o+b

Kshs

d

Kshs

e=c-d
Receipts

Exchequer
Releoses

Totol Receipls

Payments

Compensotion of
Employees

Use of Goods
ond Services

Sociol Security
Benefits

Acquisition of
Assets

Iolols Poyments

Surplus/Deficit

t= dlc%

1,052,700,000 1,792,578 1,054,492,578 1,041,t97,303 13,295,275 99%

I ,052,700,000 1 ,792,578 1 ,054,492,578 1,041,1 97,303 13,295,275 99%

639,000,000 33,51 8,400 672,518,400 659 ,781 ,037 12,737 ,363 98%

36r,9s0,000 (24,075,822) 337,874,178 333,100,3t2 4,773,866 99%

23,800,000 1,700,000 25,500,000 25,400,883 99 ,117 100%

27,9s0,000 (9,3s0,000) 18,600,000 t8,483,394 I t6,606 99%

1,052.700,000 1,792,578 1,054,492,578 1,036,765,626

4431,677

ke, SS Mohomed Adon
Deputy Direclor, Finonce &
Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

17,726,952 gg%

o) Vorionce onolysis: The Authority's overoll obsorption rote is 98%. There wos
no significont underutilizotion of the budget below 90%.

b) Adjustmenl within the yeor: The chonges of Kshs. 1,lg2$l} between the
originol ond the finol budget resulted from odditionol funds ond
reollocotions in Supplementory Estimotes No. I ond ll.

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved on I fh Au ust 2 24
ond signed by:

E

Acc g Officer/CEO

_l
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14.2 Summary Statement of Appropriation: Development for FY2023124

The Authority did not hove o development budget in the reporting period

14.3 Budget Execution by Programmes and sub.Programmes for FY2023124

2023124

Kshs

Programme l: Policing Oversight Services

Sub-Progromme
1: Policing
Oversight
Services

Totol

1,052,700,000 1,792,s78 1,054,492,s78 1,036,765,626 17,726,952

l.o52,70o,ooo 1 ,792,578 1 ,054,492,578 1,036,765,626 17 ,726,952

Noles:
o) The Authority hos only one Progromme - Policing Oversight Services.

b) The Authority's originol opproved GOK budget wos Kshs. 1,052,700,000.

However, the budget wos revised upwords by Kshs. 1,792,578 to Kshs.

1,054,492,578 during Supplementory Estlmotes I & ll.

c) The totol expenditure during the period omounted to Kshs. 1,036,765,626

ond only Kshs. 17,726,952 12% ot the totol revised budget) wos not utilized
moinly due to deloy in recruitment of replocement officers

The Authority's finonciol stotements were opproved on l2th Auqust. 2024

ond signed by:

o e, Mohomed Adon.
Deputy Direclor, Finonce &

Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

ng Officer/CEo

Kshs Kshs

2023124

Kshs Kshs

?rogromme/Sub-
Progromme

Odglnol
Budgel

Acfuo! on
comporoble

bosls

Budgel
ulillzolion
difierence

Adluslments FlnolBudgel

o
lemo
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The principle occounting policies odopted in the preporotion of these
finonciol stotements ore set out below:

1. slaremeIT OF coMPtIANcE AND BAsIs oF PREPARATIoN

The finonciol stotements hove been prepored in occordonce with cosh-
bosis lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting Stondords (IPSAS) os prescribed by
the Public Sector Accounting stondords Boord (psASB) ond set out in the
occounting policy note below. Ihis cosh bosis of occounting hos been
supplemented with occounting for; o) receivobles thot include imprests
ond solory odvonces ond b) poyobles thot include deposits ond
retentions.

The finonciol stotements comply with ond conform to the form of
presentotion prescribed by the PSASB. The occounting policies odopted
hove been consistently opplied to oll the yeors presented.

2. neponntc ENTtry
The finonciol stotements ore for the lndependent policing oversight
Authority (lPoA). The finonciolstotements encomposs the reporting entity
os specified under Section 8l of the PFM Act 2012.rhe Authority did not
implement ony development projects during the reporting period.

3. neponrrnc cuRRENcy
The finonciol stotements ore presented in Kenyo shillings (Kshs), which is
the functionol ond reporting currency of the Government ond oll volues
ore rounded to the neorest Kenyo Shilling.

4. srcHlnclNT AccouNTlNG poLrctES

The occounting policies set out in this section hove been consistenfly
opplied by lndependent Policing oversight Authority (tpoA) for oil the
yeors presented.

a. Recognition of Receipts
The Authority recognises oll receipts from the vorious sources when the
event occurs, ond the reloted cosh hos been received by the Authority.

I5. iIOTES TO THE FIIIIAI{CIAL STATEMEI{TS
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Significant Accounting Policies (Gontinued)

i.Transfers from the Exchequer

Tronsfers from the exchequer ore recognized in the books of occounts when

cosh is received. Cosh is considered os received when poyment instruction

is issued to the bonk ond notified to the receiving Authority.

ii.External Assistance
Externol ossistonce is received through gronts ond loons from multiloterol
ond biloterol development portners. Gronts ond loons sholl be recognized
in the books of occounts when cosh is received. Cosh is considered os

received when o poyment odvice is received by the recipient entity or by
the beneficiory. ln cose of gront/loon in kind, such gronts ore recorded
upon receipt of the gront item ond upon determinotion of the volue.

The dote of the tronsoction is the volue dote indicoted on the poyment
odvice. A similor recognition criterion is opplied for loons received in the
form of o direct poyment.

During the yeor ended 30tn June 2024, there were no instonces of non-
complionce with terms ond conditionswhich hove resulted in concellotion
of externol ossistonce loons. The Authority did not receive externol
ossistonce through gronts from multiloterol ond biloterol development
portners during the period under review

iii.Miscellaneous receiPts
These include Appropriotion-in-Aid ond relotes to receipts such os proceeds from

disposol of ossets ond sole of tender documents. These ore recognized in

the finonciol stotements the time ossocioted cosh is received.

b. Recognition of payments

The Authority recognizes oll poyments when the event occurs, ond the
reloted cosh hos been poid out by the Authority.

i. Gompensation of Employees

Solories ond woges, ollowonces, stotutory contribution for employees ore
recognized in the period when the compensotion is poid.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

ii. Use of Goods and Services
Goods ond services ore recognized os poyments in the period when the
goods/services ore poid for. such expenses, if not poid during the period
where goods/services ore consumed, sholl be disclosed os pending bills.

iii.lnterest on Borrowing
The Authority hos no loons

iv.Principal on borrowing
Ihe Authority hos no loons.

v. Acquisition of Fixed Assets

The poyment on ocquisition of property plont ond equipment items is not
copitolized. The cost of ocquisition ond proceeds from disposol of these
items ore treoted os poyments ond receipts items respeclively. where on
osset is ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsoction for nil or nominol
considerotion ond the foir volue of the osset con be reliobly estoblished, o
contro tronsoction is recorded os receipt ond os o poyment.

A fixed osset register is mointoined ond o summory provided for purposes of
consolidotion. This summory is disclosed os onnexure I to the finonciol
stotements.

vi. !n.kind contributions
ln-kind contributions ore donotions thot ore mode to the Authority in the
form of octuol goods ond/or services rother thon in money or cosh terms.
These donotions moy include vehicles, equipment or personnel services.
where the finonciol volue received for in-kind contributions con be
reliobly determined.

vii. Third Party Payments
The Authority hos no loons

c. Gash and Cash Equivalents
Cosh ond cosh equivolents comprise cosh on hond ond cosh of bonk,
short-term deposits on coll ond highly liquid investments with on originol
moturity of three months or less, which ore reodily convertible to known
omounts of cosh ond ore subject to insignificont risk of chonges in volue.
Bonk occount bolonces include omounts held of the centrol Bonk of
Kenyo ond of vorious commerciol bonks of the end of the finonciol yeor.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A bonk occount register is

purposes of consolidotion.
finonciol stotements.

mointoined ond o summory provided for

This summory is disclosed os note 6 to the

Restriclion on Cosh

Restricted cosh represents the omounts thot ore limited/restricted from

being used to settle o liobility for of leost twelve months ofter the reporting

period. This cosh is limited for direct use os required by stipulotion.
Amounts mointoined in deposit bonk occounts ore restricted for use in

refunding third porty deposits. As ot 30th June 2024, this omounted to Kshs.

16,100 compored to Kshs. 402,398 in prior period os indicoted on note 7. There

were no other restrictions on cosh during the yeor'

d. lmpresls ond odvonces

For the pUrpoSeS of these finonciol stotements, imprests ond odvonces to
outhorized public officers ond/or institutions which were not surrendered
or occounted for of the end of the finonciol yeor ore treoted os

receivobles. This is in recognition of the government proctice where the

imprest poyments ore recognized os poyments when fully occounted for

by the imprest or Authority to lncur Expenditure (AlE) holders. This is on

enhoncement to the cosh occounting policy. Other occounts receivobles
ore disclosed in the finonciol stotements.

e. Third porly deposils ond relenlion

For the purposes of these finonciol stotements, deposits ond retentions held on

beholf of third porties hove been recognized on on occruol bosis (os

occounts poyobles). This is in recognition of the government proctice of
retoining o portion of controcted services ond works pending fulfilment of
obligotions by the controctor ond to hold deposits on beholf of third
porties. This is on enhoncement to the cosh occounting policy odopted
for Notionol Government Ministries ond Agencies. Other liobilities including

pending bills ore disclosed in the finonciolstotements.

f. Pending Bills

The Authority hos no pending during the reporting period
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g. Budget

The budget is developed on o comporoble occounting bosis (cosh bosis
except for imprest ond deposits ond retentions, which ore occounted for
on on occruol bosis), the some occounts clossificotion bosis, ond for the
some period os the finonciol stotements. The originol budget wos opproved
by Porlioment in June 2023 for the period lsr July 2023 lo 30rh June 2024 os
required by Low ond there were two number of supplementory odjustments
to the originol budget during the yeor. A comporison of the octuol
performonce ogoinst the comporoble budget for the finonciol yeor under
review hos been included in the finonciol stotements.

h. Comparative Figures
where necessory, comporotive figures for the previous finonciol yeor hove
been omended or reconfigured to conform to the required chonges in
presentotion.

i. Subsequent Events
There hove been no events ofter the finonciol yeor end with o significont
impoct on the finonciol stotements for the yeor ended 30rh June 2024.

j. Prior Period Adjustment
During the yeor, there were no prior yeor errors corrected

k. Related Party Transactions
Reloted porty meons porties ore reloted if one porty hos the obility to:
i. Controlthe other porty or
ii. Exercise significont influence over the other porty in moking finonciol
ond operotionol decisions, or if the reloted porty entity ond onother entity
ore subject to common control. Relotes porty tronsoction is o tronsfer of
resources of obligotions between reloted porties regordless of whether o
price is chorged. This hos been disclosed in the finonciol stotements under
Note I I ond I2.l .

l. Gontingent Liabilities
The Authority does not recognize o contingent liobility but discloses detoils
of ony contingencies in the notes to the finonciol stotements unless the
possibility of on outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potentiol is remote. Note 12.2 ond Annex 3 of this finonciol
stotement is o register of the contingent liobilities in the yeor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

1. EXCHEQUER RELEASES

Kshs. Kshs.

Totol Exchequer Releoses for Quorter I

Totol Exchequer Releoses for Quorter 2

Totol Exchequer Releoses for Quorter 3

Totol Exchequer Releoses for Quorter 4

Tolol

285,s08,267

201,422,040
194,737,331

3s9,529,665

213,851,894
189,930,362
159,7 46,210

347,393,033

1,041,197,303 910,921,499

The revised opproved omount wos Kshs. 1,054,492,578 ogoinst omount
received of Kshs. 1 ,036,7 65,626. The diff erence of Kshs. 17 ,726,952 wos not
requisitioned from Notionol Treosury due to deloy in recruitment of
reploced stoff.

The octuol omount received during the finonciol yeor is Kshs. 1 ,041 .1 97,303

resulting in vorionce of Kshs. 4,431,677 unspent due to insufficient bolonces
in operotionol ond mointenonce votes ond eorly closure e-procurement
model hence remitted to Notionol Treosury.

2. COMPENSATION TO EMPLOYEES

Bosic solories of permonent employees
Bosic woges of temporory employees
Personol ollowonces poid os port of solory

Stoff Pension ond other sociol security
contribution
Tolol

Expenditure on compensotion of employees increosed
Kshs. 140,306,124 in FY 2023124 due to solory review
recruitment/replocement of stoff.

Kshs

414,884,166

1,152,973

r75,375,598
68,368,300

Kshs

350,046,501

989,789

117,736,285

50,702,338

by
ond

Descilplion 2022-2023

Descdplion 2023-2024 2022-2023

659,781,037 519,474,?13

2023-2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Gontinued)

3. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Ulilities

Communicotion, supplies ond services
Domestic trovel ond subsistence
Foreign trovel ond subsistence
Printing, odvertising/inform supplies & services
Rentols of produced ossets

Troining expenses
Hospitolity supplies ond Services
lnsuronce costs

Office ond generolsupplies ond services
Other operoting expenses
Routine mointenonce - motor vehicles
Fuel oil ond lubriconts
Routine mointenonce - other ossets

Tolol

Kshs

2,499,900

17,225,990

57,293,722

1,425,675

4,397,204

71,462,310

4,695,465

15,421,337

69,689,898

7,645,510

32,721,339

rB, r 78,683

28,291,420

2,r5r,859
333,r00,312

Kshs.

2,199,665

13,986,236

s6,880,79 r

2,391,029

4,293,755

70,479,852

8,886,77 4

r 6,400,106

68,B r8,534

10,524,791

35,916,297

16,909,397

24,397,68s

s,082,302

337,167,215

Expenditure on use of goods decreosed by Kshs. 4,066,903 in Fy 2023124
moinly due to reduction in costs reloted to foreign trovel, troining, use of
generol supplies ond operoting expenses os well os routine mointenonce
of other ossefs to ochieve economic use of ollocoted resources.

4. SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFTTS

Kshs

25,400,883

Kshs.

44,599,994Government pension ond retirement benefits -
Grotuity
Tolol 2s,400,883 44,599,994

The sociol security benefits indicoted obove is grotuity poid to officers in
controctuol terms of services for the completed period ond those who
exited before expiry of their controcts. The increose is due to poyment of
mid-term grotuity due to the commissioners.

Descriplion 2023-2024 20A2-2023

Descrlplion 2023-2024 20A2-2023

l
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

Purchose of Office Furniture ond Generol
Equipment
Purchose of Speciolized Plont, Equipment ond
Mochinery
Sub-tolol

FinonciolAssels

Housing Loons to Public Servonts (Stoff Mortgoge
ond cor loon)
Sub-tolol

Tolol

Kshs

2,037,200

Kshs

3,699,950

2,946,194 1,393,044

4,983,394 5,092,994

r3,500,000

r 3,500,000

r8,483,394 5,092,994

During the period under review, the finonciol ossets budget wos increosed
by Kshs.l3.5 million.

6. CASH AND BANK ACCOUNTS

6A: BANK ACCOUNTS

Kshs

4,816,288
Kshs.

4,771,327CentrolBonk of Kenyo, Account No. 1000181559-

Recurrent
CentrolBonk of Kenyo, Account No. 1000182393 -

Deposit
Centrol Bonk of Kenyo 155, Account No. 1000182717-

Tolol

68: CASH ON HAND

r 6,100 402,398

4,832,388 5,173,726

2023-2024 202:2-2023

Nome of Bonk, Accounl No. & cunency 2023-2024 2022-2023

The Authority did not mointoin cosh in the yeor under review

Non -FinonciolAssels
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Gontinued)

7. THIRD PARTY DEPOSITS AND RETENTTON

Kshs

The stoff retention represents insuronce cloim of Ksh. 384,61 1 poyobles to o stoff
ond finol solory dues of Kshs. I 6,100 poyobles to on officer who exited the
Authority.

8. FUND BALANCE BROUGHT FORWARD

Retention - Office Refurbishment
Deposits - Proceeds for Disposol of Assets

Retention - (Stoff Retentions)
Tolol

Bonk occounts
Accounts Receivobles
Accounts Poyobles
Iolol

9. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustments on bonk occount bolonces
Tolol

400,711

400,711

Kshs

5,173,726

(587,34r)

4,586,384

Kshs.

359,398

43,000

184,943

587,34r

Kshs

3,603,968

97,126
3,437,9281

263,166

Kshs.

(263,1661

(263,r 66)

Kshs

(4,s86,384)

(4,586,384)

The prior yeor odjustments reloted to fund bolonces brought forword from
the previous period ond surrendered bock to the Exchequer during the
subsequent finonciol yeor.

10. (ltrlGREASE)/DECREASE tN ADVANCES AND !MPRESTS

Receivobles os of l't July 2023
Receivobles os of 30th June 2024
lncreose/ (Decreose) in Receivobles

Kshs

97,126

2023-2024 2022-2023

Descripllon 2022-2023

Descriplion 2023-2024

Descripllon 2023-2024
Kshs

(97,126)

Descrlplion

2023-2024

2022-2023

2022-2023
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I t.(TNCREASE)/ DECREASE lN RETENTI0N AND THIRD-PARTY DEPoSITS

Poyobles os oi I't July 2023

Poyobles os of 30th June 2024

lncreose/ (Decreose) in poyobles

Kshs

587,341

400,711

(r 86,630)

Kshs

3,437,928
587,341
(2,850,s87)

l2.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

These ore enlities ond other porties reloted to the Authority who hove obility to

exercise control or exercise significont influence over its operoting ond finonciol

decisions. The Authority is reloted to:

l. The Notionol Government;
2. County Governments;
3. Boord Members;ond
4. Key Monogement

I 3.OTHER IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

13.1 Related Party Transactions

Descri on 2023-2024 2022-2023

2023-2024 2022-2023

Key Monogemenl Compensolion
IPOA Boord
Director/CEO & DeputY Directors

Tolol Key Monogemenl Compensolion

13.2 Gontingent Liabilities

Kshs

64,17 6,462

29,455,340
93,63r,802

Kshs

57,412,256
25,733,212
83,r45,468

Conlin ent liobilities 2023-2024 20A2-2023

Court cose No. El95 of 2021, ogoinst John Kirogu

vs IPOA ond three others for generol ond speciol
domoges plus cost ond interest
Tolol

Kshs

898,000

898,000

Kshs

The Authority hos o contingent litigotion in progress from the chief mogistrote

court ot Embu cose No. E 195 of 2021, John Kirogu vs IPOA ond three others, where

the Court issued o judgement owording generol domoges of Kshs. 800, 000 ond
speciol domoges of Kshs.98,000 plus cost ond interest ogoinst IPOA ond 2 other

defendonts.
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,l3.3 PROGRESS 0N FOLIOW UP 0F PR!0R YEARS AUDITOR.GENERAL'S RECOMMEIIIDATIONS

Ihe Authority hod no prior yeors oudit issues.

loke, SS Mohomed Adon
Deputy Direclor, Finonce &

Plonning.
ICPAK M/No. 13129

Acc ng Officer/CEO
mo



Office refurbishment (2no

3,d ond 4th Floors, ACK
Gorden Annex, l'1 Ngong
Avenue, Noirobi, ond
regionol offices)
Motor vehicles

Office equipment,
furniture ond fittings
ICT equipment, softwore
ond other ICT ossets

Total

2,037,200

14,995,137 2,946,\94

406,287,924 4,983,394

16, ANNEXES

ANNEX I - SUMMARY OF FIXED ASSET REGISTER

r39,863,349
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r39,863,349

r95,9s4,980

57,51 I ,658

17,941 ,331

411 ,271,318

r95,954,980

55,47 4,458

Assel closs HisloricolCosl
blt

(Kshs)

Addilions
during lhe

period

Disposols
during lhe

period

Irqnsfers
in/(out)

during lhd

HisloricolCosl
c/l

(Kshs)

Kshs
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ANNEX II- REPORTS GENERATED FROM IFMIS

1. GOK IFMIS Statement of Receipts and Payments for the year ended 30t'June,2024

RECEIPIS

Exchequer releoses
TOTAI. RECEIPTS

PAYMENIS

Compensotion of Employees
Use of goods ond Services
Sociol Security Benefits
Acquisition of Assets

TOTAT PAYMENTS

SURPTUS/DEFICIT

4 1,04t,197,303
r ,04r,1 97,303

659,781 ,037
333, r 00.31 2

25,400,883
r8,483,394

1,036,7 65,626

4,431.677

910,921,499

910,921,499

519,47 4,913
337 ,167 ,215
44,599 ,99 4

5,092,994
906,335, r r 5

4,586,384

12

l3
17

t8

2. GOK IFMIS Statement of Financial Position as at 30th Juner 2024

Finonciol Assels

Cosh ond Cosh Equivolents

Bonk Bolonces
Tolol Cosh And Cosh Equivolenls

TOTAL TINANCIAT ASSETS

Finonciol [iobilities

Accounts Poyobles - Deposits

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

Represenled 8y

Fund Bolonce b/fwd
Prior Yeor Adjustment
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Yeor

4,832,388 5,173,725

400,71 I 587,34 r

4,431,677 4,586,384

22A

24

25

to

Kshs

4,832,388
4,832,388

4,586,384
(4,s86,384)

4,431,677

Kshs

5,173,725
5,173,725

263,166

1263,166)
4.586.384

NET FINANCIAT POSITION 4,431,677

Note Cunent Period Previous Period

Note Cunent Period Previous Period

l

4,586,384
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3. GOK IFMIS statement of Financial Position as at 30'h Juner2024

Kshs Kshs

Receipts ond operoting income

Exchequer releoses 4 1,04],197,303 910,921,499

Poyments lor Operoling ExPenses

Compensotion of EmPloyees

Use of goods ond Services

Sociol Security Benefits

Adjusled lor:
Adjustmenls during the yeor

Prior yeor odjustments

Net Cosh From Operoting Activities

Cosh Flow From lnvesting Activilies

Acquisition of Assets

Net Cosh flow From lnvesling Activilies

Cosh Flow From Bonowing Activities

Net Cqsh Flow From Finoncing Aclivities
net increose in cosh ond cosh equivolent
cosh ond cosh equivolent ot beginning of
the yeor
Cosh ond Cosh Equivolenl ot END of The

Yeor

18,142,057 6,662,7 5t

]B
B

L
A+B+C

16s9,781 ,0371

(333, r 00,31 2)

(25,400,883)

(r86,630)

(4,586,384)

(r8,483,394)
( r 8,483,3e4)

(34r,337)

5,173,725

(519,47 4,913)

l337 ,167 ,21 5)

i.44,599,9941

12,7s3,4601

1263,\ 661

\s,092,ee4)
(s,0e2,e94)

| ,569 ,7 57

3,603,968

t2
t3
17

22A+228 4,832,388 5,173,725

.I

Note Currenl Period Previous Period

I



4. Gok IFMIS Statement of Budget Execution - Recurrent Expenditure

d=a+b+Cc
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e

1,041,197,303

1 ,041 ,197,303

RECEIPTS

Exchequer releases

Total

PAYMENTS
Compensation of
Employees
Use of goods and
Services
Social Security Benefits

Acquisition of Assets

Total

4

639,000,000

361,950,000

23,800,000

27,950,000

1 ,052,700,000

33,518,400

(24,075,822)

1,700,000

(9,350,000)

1,792,57A

672,518,400

337,874,178

25,500,000

18,600,000

1,054,492,578

659,781,037

333. r 00.31 2

25,400,883

18,483,394

1,036,765,626

f=d-e

(1,041,197,303)

(1 ,041 ,197,303)

12,737,363

4.773,866

99,1 1 7

1 16,606

17,726,952

g=eldo/.

Oo/o

o%

98%

99o/o

1000/o

99%

98v"

12

IJ

17

18

r7

a

Realloca
tion

/Transfe
r

ry Estimates Estimate (Net)
of

Estimate UtilizationUtilization
Oifferences
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5. Gok IFMIS Notes to Financial Statements

llem Descriplion

Exchequer Releoses/ Provisioning Accounl for Q1

Exchequer Releoses/ Provisioning Accounl for Q2

Exchequer Releoses/ Provisioning Accounl for Q3

Exchequer Releoses/ Provisloning Account for Q4

IOTAT

llem Code Cunent Period

Kshs

285,508,267

201 ,422,040
194,737,331

3s9 ,s29,665
1,041,r 97,303

Previous Period

Kshs

2 r 3,851 ,894

r89,930,362

1 59 ,7 46,210

347,393,034
910,921,499

99r020r
99 r 0201

99 1020 r

99 l 0201

llem Description

Bosic Solories - Permonent Employees

Bosic Woges - Temporory EmPloyees

Personol Allowonces poid os port of Solory

Sociol Benefit Schemes Outside Governmenl

TOIAT

llem Code Current Period

Kshs

41 4 ,884,t 66

I ,152,973
17 s,37 5 ,59I
68,368,300
659,781,037

Previous Period

Kshs

350.046,501

989,789

I t7 ,736,285

50,702,338

519,474,913

2il0100
2 r r0200

21r0300

2 r 20300

Item Descriplion

Utililies, Supplies ond Services

Communicolion, Supplies ond Services

Domeslic lrovel ond Subsistence, ond Other
Tronsportotion Costs
Foreign Trovel ond Subsislence, ond other
tronsportotion costs

Printing, Advertising ond lnformolion Supplies ond
Services
Rentols of Produced Assets

Troining Expenses

Hospitolity Supplies ond Servi

lnsuronce Cosls

Office ond Generol Supplies ond Services

Fuel Oil ond Lubriconis
Olher Operoting Expenses

Routine Mointenonce - Vehicles
Routine Mointenonce - Olher Assets

TOTAI.

Item Code Cunent Period Previous Period

2210400 \,425,675

22 r 0500 4,397,204

22r0r00
2210200
22 r 0300

Kshs

2,499,900
17,22s,990

57,293,722

71,462,310
4,695,465

15,421 ,337

59,689.898

7,645,510
28,291,420

32,721 ,33?

I 8,1 78,683

2,r5r,859
333,100,312

Kshs

2,199,665
13,986,236

56,880,791

4,293,7 55

70,479,852
8,886,77 4

I 6,400,1 06

68,81 8,534

10,524.791

24,397,685

35,916.297
16.909,397

5,082,302
337,167,215

2210600

2210700
221 0800

2210900

22il r00
2211200

22rr300
2220100
2220200

4 releoses

12 Co of

i

13 Use of ond Services

2,391,029
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llem Descriplion

Government Pension ond Relirement Benefits
IOTAI.

Item Code

2/10r00

Cunent Period
Kshs

25.400.883

25,400,883

Previous Period
Kshs

44,599,994

M,599,994

llem Description

Purchose of Office Furnilure ond Generol Equipment
Purchose of Speciolized Plont, Equipmenl ond
Mochinery
Domeslic Lending ond On-lending
IOTAI

llem Code

3il r000

3lllr00

4I 10000

Cunent Period

Kshs

2.037.200

2,946,194

r3.500.000

18,483,394

Previous Period

Kshs

3,699.950

r,393.044

s,092,994

Item Descriplion

Recurrent Bonk Accounts
Deposit Bonk Account
TOTAT

llem Code Cunenl Period
Kshs

4.81 6,288

I 5,100

4,832,388

Previous Period

Kshs

4,7 71 .327

402,398

5,173,725

6530000

6550000

llem Descriplion

Deposih

TOTAT

llem code

/3 r 0000

Cunenl Period
Kshs

400.7I I

400.7r r

Previous Period
Kshs

587 .341

587,341

Opening Bolonce Bonk
Opening Bolonce Receivobles - lmpresl ond
Cleoronce Accounls
Opening Bolonce - Deposits
TOTAT

llem Code

22A

Currenl Period
Kshs

5,173,725

(58/.34 r )

4,586,384

Previous Period

Kshs

3,603.958

97.t26

13,437,928)

263.166

Item Description

Exchequer Provisions

IOTAL

llem Code Cunenl Period
Kshs

4.586.384

4,586.384

Previous Period

Kshs

263.166

263,r66

99 r0200

17 Sociol Benefits

_l

l8 Ac of Assets

22A Bonk Bolonces

24. Accounts ble

25. Fund Bolonces Fonrord

llem Descriplion

26.Prior Yeor
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ANNEX III - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES REGISTER

Nofure of
conlingenl lloblllty

No.

I Court Aword for
cose No. El95 of
2021, John Kirogu
vs IPOA ond three
others,

The chief mogistrote court ot Embu issued o
judgemeni owording generol domoges of Kshs.

800, 000 ond speciol domoges of Kshs. 98,000

plus cost ond interest ogoinst IPOA ond 2 other
defendonts.
The Authority hos oppeoled ogoinst the decision
in the High Court ot Embu, civil oppeol No. E032

of 2024 where the High Court hos stoyed
execuiion of the judgement until determinotion
of the oppeol.

Remorks
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